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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Principal activities

Liberty Zeta Limited (the "Company™) is the ultimate holding company of the Liberty Group of companies (the "Group”). Operating
since 1875, Liberty’s aim is to be recognised throughout the world as a British huxury brand with an authovity in taste-making,
design, omni-channel retail and makers of fine printed celtons and silk.

Strategy and objectives

Liberty Zeta Limited and its subsidiaries are split across three significant segments; Liberty Retail. Liberty Fabries (including
Liberty Fabric Limited. Liberty Japan Co. Limited and Stamperia Olonia SRL) and Liberty Brand. FEach ol the five businesses has
s own business plan and the Board of Directors (the "Nirectors™) manages adherenee @ these plans.

The strategy of the Group, led by the activities of the Directors, is to grow profitably in the three segments, as totlows:

Liberty Retail is focused on profitable growth of the 1404 year old retail business, trading from its iconic tudor building on Great
Marlborough Street, London (the "Flagship” store) and through its website. libertylondon.com which extends reach and
distribution in the UK and internationally through unique product edit. customer experience and competitive service proposition.

The Liberty FFabrics strategy focuses on protitable growth through a dynamic. customised approach to s B2B customers in
different global regions. This is driven by expansion of designs and design services. innovative base cloths and exceptional
product quality and service. This strategy 1s supported by the activities of the Stamperia Olonia SRL division i the preparation
and printing of fabrics for both external customers and for Liberty Fabrics using both traditional and advanced digital printing
tmethods.

The Liberty Brand product strategy focuses on the development of a luxury goods brand active in multiple categorics that will be
distributed on a global scale through Liberty Retail and B2B channels.

Business review and future developments

The consolidated operating profit of the Group in the Income Statement for the 52 week period umil 28 January 2023 (the "period”}
was £13.460.000 (2022: £2 937.000) and is set out on page 19 of the financial statements. The financial position of the Group,
showing a net asset value of £101,689.000 (2022: £104,161,000} is set out in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positton on
page 21 of the financial statements. The profit before taxation tor the financial period amounted o £712,000 (2022: loss of
£7.165.000),

The COVID-19 global pandemic has been adverscly impacting the Group's performance since 2020, and whilst the company has
been mitigating the impacts on its business during this time, it has been focussed on recovering its revenue and profit to pre-
pandemic levels, Despite government restrictions relating to COVID-19 still being in foree at the start of the tinancial peried both
i the UK and around the world. the Group achieved record revenues in the period, which were significantly ahead ot the pre-
COVID-19 year ending 1 February 2020, EBITDA in the period totalled £21,003,000 which is still behind the EBITDA achieved
in the pre-COVID-19 year of £L25.785.000. The FBITDA shortfail verses the pre-COVID-19 vear was present across all business
units.

Libertv Retail

As COVID-19 restrictions were remoned in the spring of 2022, tootfall in London inproved and the Flagship store returned to
trading more representatisve of pre-pandemic levets. The store continued to show resilience in the Christmas period as high levels
of inflation and cost of living concerns were making news headlines.

All product categaries perfonmed well within the store, Liberty branded products outperformed third party brands, with strong
performunce seen in Accessories. Home and Beauty products.

The Liberty c-cominerce business has continued to grow against a market where onling retail has been challenged by the resurgenee
of physical stores. Improvements have been made to the efficiency of the e-commerce business operations with the focus on
improving the EBITDA contribation from online sales.

It was another record vear in terms of both units and revenue for the Liberty beauty advent calendar and the Beauty Drop subscription
service expanded further with more active subscribers at the end of the period. Unique to the market, this initiative builds on the
strength of Liberty's beauly business and benefits customers who subscribe to the programme with quarierly boxes of curated beauty
products in return for a monthly spend commitment. The long-term benefit to the business will be seen in sales growth and retention
ot high value customers.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Business review and future developments (continued)

Lihertv Fabrices

The Liberty Fabrics business delivered another year of revenue growth in the period despite being taced with challenging market
conditions. Production costs increased significantly due to the unprecedented rise in gas prices and it was necessary o introduce
enerygy price surcharges o mitigate the impaet on margins. Having targeted China as a key growh market, COVID-19 restrictions
in China continued to restrict sales grow th during the period. The fabrics business has continued to diversify its product range and
achicve growth in new arcas including Interiors and Crafting.

The Group acquired Frame Due Sri, *Frame’, in December 2022, Frame spectalises in the manufacrure of printing rollers and screens
which are essential in the production of Liberty print fabrics. By turther knproving vettical integration in the fabrics supply chain
will result in improved lead times. consisient quality in production, reduced operational risk and improved end to end gross margin.

Liberty Brand

The Group continues 1o focus on its own Liberty London brand and product development with & series of successiui new product
launches in the financial period in categories such as Accessories, Beauty, Jewellery and Homeware which included the launch of
a new range of bedding made with Liberty Fabrics,

Key performance indicators

The Dircctors use a number of KPI's which they consider are effective in measuring delivery of the strategy, and which assist the
Directors in management of the business. The KPI's relating to the business are shown below,

52 week period 52 week period

ended ended

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

Total revenue £'000 184,932 149,601
EBITDA before non-recurring and one-oll costs {"Management EBITDA") L1000 21.003 11,153
Management EBITDA as a pereentage ol sales Y% 11.4% 7.5%
Operating profit £000 13.460 2937

The group gencrated "Management EBITDA” of £21.0403.000 (2022: £11,153.000). The operating profit of the Group was
£13.460.000 (2022: £2 937,000,

b



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Management EBITDA

Management EBITIXA is caleudated by adding back and deducting non-recurring revenuc and costs respectively from statunory
EBITDA.

52 week period 52 week period

ended cnded

28 January 2023 29 Janvary 2022

Operating profit 13,460 2937
Depreciation Note § 4,424 5220
Amortisation Note 7 2.690 2218
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 23q -
[FRS L6 depreciation Note 10 3,862 4.130
EBITDA 24.672 14,505
Exceptional costs 2,434 1433
Exceptional income (1.13%8) -
IFRS 16 fease pavments Nate 1) (4.920) {5,090
[FRS 2 - share bused payments Note 20 (45) 305
Management EBITDA 21,003 11,153

Non-recurring and material transactions outside the ordinary course of business are treated as exceptional items. This includes:
Recovery of VAT totalling £1,138,000 (2022: £nil). The balance has been treated as taxable income.

Restructuring costs of £722.000 were incurred in the period as a result of a review of the business structure (2022: £nil). The
balance has been treated as a deductible expense.

Recognition of an incentive scheme relating 1o a historical period totalling €582 000 (2022: £nil}. The balance has been treated as
a deductible expense.

One off litigation provision of £203.000 relating 1o a licensing claim (2022: £nil). The balance has been weuted as a deductible
expense,

One off refurbishment costs in relation to the Flagship store £nil (2022: £888,000).

Impairment of goodwill totalling £nil (2022: £345,000).

Impairment of ROU assets tolalling £927.000 (2022: £nil). The balance has been treated as a movement in deferred tax not
recognised.

Principal risks and unccrtaintics

The Directors and the senior executive team wdentify and evaluate risks and uncertaintics in the period covered by the Group
Business Plan and design controls lo mitigate these. Responsibility for munagement of each key risk is identified and delegated by
the Directors to specific senior executives within cach ol the Group's operating businesscs.

This section describes some of the specific risks that could matertally aftect the Giroup's businesses, The risks outlined below should
be considered in connection with any financial and forward-fooking intormation in the financial statements, These risks could
materially affect the Group's business, its operating profits, carnings. net assets, liquidity and capital resources.

Economic, political, social and regularory changes adversely affecting the Group’s financial petformance

The Group is exposed to the risks of global and regional adverse political, cconontic and financial market developments (including
recession, inflation and currency fluciuations), that could lower the Group's revenues and operating results in the future.

The Group's results could also be adverscly affected by cvents that reduce domestic or international travel. such as acmal or
threatened acts of terrorism or war, epidemics. travel-related aceidents or industrial action, increased transportation and {uet costs
and natural disasters.

The Group continue to monitor and assess the impact on the Group due to changes in cconomic, political. social and regulatory
decision making, The Grroup considers whether any changes have an adverse impact and will address these with mitigating factors
ax seen [t

o



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 weck period ¢ended 28 January 2023

Principal risks and uncertainties {continucd)
Financial market volatility adversely affecting the Group's financial perfornance

The Group is sensitive to macrocconomic volatility and the resultant reduction in supply of eredit and is significant increase in
cost. fn addition. liquidity risk affects the Group. in that this could result in it being unable to meet its financial obligations as they
Tull due. The Directors” approach o managing liquidity 1s to casure, as fur as possible, that the Group has sutficient liquidity to meet
ity Habilitics, without wewring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation and business. The Group uses
detailed divisional cash flow reporting to assist the Directors in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising cash returns on
investments across the whole Group. The Group entered into a Senjor Financing arrangement with a six year term commencing on
31 January 2018 and in the year. this was extended turther by one year.

Technology and systems disrunion adversely affecting the Group's efficiency

To varying degrees. the Group is reliant upon information technologies and systems for the running of its businesses, particularly
those which are highty integrated with business processes. Any disruption to those technologics or systems could adversely aftect
the ¢lficieney of the business.

An Information Sccurity Management System (ISMS) is in place 1o address the governance. risk and compliance of information
security and information technology.

The Group is committed to having the correct systems and processes in place to support the Group's strategic objectives and is
investing in systems and sceurity 1o support this development. These improvements in information technologies and systems are
being funded through operational cash flows,

Cyber security

The Group regularly conduct risk assessments, which includes evaluating the netwaork infrastructure, data handling practices. and
the effectiveness of existing security measures. The Group deploys robust security measures to protect sensitive data and mitigate
cyberseeurity risks. This includes tirewalls, intrusion detection and prevention systems, sceure aceess controls and regular
software updates and patches. Network segmentation and strong password policies to further enhance security.

In addition, the Group also conducets regular training sessions with its cmployees to raise awareness about phishing attacks, social
engincering, data handling protocols, and the importance of reporting security incidents promptly. Regular internal audits are
carried out 1o assess the organisation's cybersecurity posture and vulherability. The Group also partners with external
cybersecurity and compliance experts to provide specialised guidance and stay updated on emerging threats and regulatory
changes.

Loss of key management personnel

The Group is reliant on its team ot executives. The future success of the Group depends on the ability of its existing management
lean, the identification and appointment of suttable additional executives when required, and on the Group’s ability to motivate and
retain stalt with the requisite experience. The Group implemented a robust reeruitment process Lo ensure the quality and gquantity
of hiring is sufficient and continue to cngage with employees throughout their employment to ensure the group continue to retain
key personnel,

Changes in fashion trends

The Group s dependent upon its ability to interpret and offer fashion products that customers wish to purchase. Failure to be
successful in this area of activity. particularly noting the long lead times before product is available for sale, would cause an adverse
impact on revenues and profitability.

Reliance un reputation of the Liberty brands

[t an event occurred that materially damaged the reputation of any of the Group's core brands or there was a failure to sustain the
appeal of the Group’s brands to its customers, this could have an adverse impact on revenues and resultant sharcholder value. The
Group owns a worldwide portiolio of trademark registrations. The Liberty design archive is protecied by UK copyright. Should the
Giroup hecome aware of any trademark or copyright infringement. steps are laken to enforee the Group's legal right in relation to
that infringement,
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STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Principal risks and uncertaintics (continucd)

Pension scheme shorifalls

The Liberty Retail Limited Pension Scheme ("the Scheme”). which is a defined benefit pension scheme, is currently showing assets
of £234.000 (2022 £3.657.000}). I the value of the Scheme assets were to decline materially relative to its liabilities. the Scheme
may show a higher deficit and the Group might be required to make additional contributions to cover this shortfall. This would have
an adverse impact on cash flow available to the Group., with resultant adverse ettects on the cash tlow and net worth of the Group.

Management and Pension Scheme Trustees meet regularly and have made major changes to the investment strategy of the Scheme
aver reeen! years to respond to changes in the waket and to underpin its tinancial performance. They also reecive advice from
cxternal actuaries and investment advisers which assists in mitigating this risk through the Scheme’s diversitied iny estments and
risk minimisation strategy.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group uses various financial instruments and is also exposed to risk in respect of its holding of investments in subsidiary
undertakings. Existence of these financial instruments exposces the Group to u number of financial risks which are described in more
detail below,

The main risks to the Group arising from its financial instruments are market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and investment
impairment risk. Directors and management review and agree the approach to manage each of these.

Market risk

Murket risk that affects the Group is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates. toreign currency rates and cquity
prices. will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of the CGroup's market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while seeking to optimise returns to
sharcholders. The Group does not enter into hedge contracts on a speculative or trading basis.

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financial foss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails 10 mect its contractual
obligations. The risk 1o the Group arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and from deposits with financial
institutions.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced nwainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of
the Group's customer base, including the gencral default risk in the principal sectors in which the Group operates, has less of an
influence on credit risk. The Group maintains credit insurance which protects against bad debts that may arise. with an cxcess of
the higher of £2,000 or 10% payable per claim.

The Group deposits money with financial institutions and monitors the health and financial condition of those mstitutions.
Liguidity risk {incorporating interest rate risk)
The Group's wreasury policics are designed to ensure that sufticient commited loan factlities are available 10 support current and

future business requirements, Cash and loan management is a core teature of the Board's business model and rolling cash flow
forecasts, updated on a weekly basis, arc controlled by the Dircetors and senior executives to manage these requirements,

Investment impairment risk

The Directors understand the risks associated with the investments held by the eatity and the (act that these nisks relate to the
potential impairment of those investments, To identify any risk of impairment in a timely manner. the Group reviews the financial
performance of its investments on a regular basis. The Directors are satistied with the performance of the investiments and foresce
no change in this for the foresceable future.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 weck period ended 28 January 2023

Principal risks and uncertainties (continucd)

Capital management policy
The Group's objectives when muanaging capital are:
» tosafeguard the group's ability to continue as a going concern in order 1o provide returns for sharcholders and beneltits to
other stakeholders: and
« to ensure sufficient liquid resources are available to meet the funding requirement of its working capital cycles and to fund

new projects where identified.

This is achicved through ensuring sufficient bank and other fucilities are in place. alongside the continual monitoring of cashflow
forecasts and other financial key performance indicators.

Foreign exchange fluctuations

The Group transacts a significant proportion ot its sales and purchases in foreign currency. The Group mitigates the cttect of adverse
movements in exchange rates frst by negotiating the functional currencies of large purchiase contracts to match the currency ot sales
receipts. thereby creating a natural hedge. Consolidation of the Group's Japanese fabric bustness and Ttalian printing business in
these Financial Statements includes the impact of the movement in the Sterling Yen and Sterling’Luro exchange rates during the
period and at the period end on the consolidated resubts and net asset value ot the foreign operations. For further information on the
financial risk management policy, please refer 1o note 18,

Changes in ax legislation materially changing the tax paid by the Group

The Group is exposed Lo risks from increases in tax rates and changes in the basis of taxation, including corporation {ax and VAT,
The enpagement of experienced exeeutives within the Group and by its parent undertaking to handle these matters enhances the
protection to the Group in this arca of its activitics. The Group and its parent undertaking alse maintain a regular monitoring of
legislative proposals and undertakes detailed analysis and review with external (non-audit refated) advisers 1o evaluate and. if
possibie. mitigate the impact ot the changes.

Fluctuations in commodity prices

The Group is exposcd to risks of increases in raw materials, such as cotton and silk, The price risk associated with these items could
impact the profitability of the Group. The Group will attempt to safeguard against this by ¢ngaging with a number of different raw
material providers across different countries.

The Group's risks related to energy are primarily concentrated to electricity and gas. The price risk associated with energy could
impact the profitability ot the Group duc to production services being energy intensive. The Group will attempt to satcguard against
this by engaging with suppliers to ensure any increase in production costs are minimised.

Section 172 statement

The Directors, in line with their duties under 5172 of the Companics Act, act in good taith in promoting the success of the company
for the benetit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of matters when making long term decisions.
Examples of such factors are as detailed below:

(a) the likely conscquences of any decision in the long term,

(b} the intercsts of the company's cmployces,

(c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with supplicrs, customers and others.

(d} the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment.

(¢) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and

(1) the need to act fairly as between members of the company.,
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Section 72 statement (continued)

Material
Stakeholders

Vhat is Important to the
stakcholder

Methods of Engagement

iConsideration and Impact

Sharcholders

L3

Profitability and business
growth potential

Accurate and reliable business
information

Regular update meetings
with directors and board
members

Access to senior
management outside of
regiar update meetings
Specific investor calls for
non-board members

Regular financial updates on
business pertormance
Involvement in investment
plans for future growth
initiatives

Involvement in funding
strategies

Employees

Regular communication and
cngagement

Career development
Wellbeing and Hexibie
working

Fostering a diverse and
inclusive culture

Surveys around relevant
lopics

Individual performance
reviews and development
plans

Lagage with our

work force through the
Liberty Forums and
internal communications

Employvee remuneration was
reviewed and amended to
reflect cost of living
pressures and o remain
competitive

Continuation of the Equality
Forum to allow for diftering
external speakers to tatk
about key equality aspects in
modcern society

Regular town halls with
business updates

K ustomers

Curated product selection and
design that fits customer
needs

Customer service and
experience belitting a luxury
brand

Ensure customer
cxpectations are
continuously met through
post contact surveys
Marketing hightighting
new product or lifestyle
ideas

Expansion of beauty
subscription loyalty program
Designed and developed new
L.iberty branded product
calegories

Supplicrs

Refiable and timely payment
Regular communication as to
how their brand is performing
and any actions we may have
to take to mitigate poor
performance

Importance to Liberty is that
suppliers arc meeting the
cthical code that Liberty
expects from all suppliers.

Designated point of
contact for all supplicrs
Constant review of
supplier base to ensure
the brand is still relevant
for Liberty

CSR team
communicating with
suppliers to ensure
ethical code of conduct is
et

The buying team work with
suppliers 1o develop and buy
the relevant products for
current customer trends
Review of non-inventory
suppliers to ensure value Is
still ebtained

Debt holders

Future success of the business
ensuring covenants and
linancial obligations arc met
Accurate and reliable business
information

Debt holders are
represented on the Board
Senior finance
individuals host quarterly
updates with debt holders

Receive a monthly financial
pack

Receive a more detailed
quarterly update regarding
historical and future
performance

An amended and extended
Scnior Facility Agreement
was signed in the period

The Directors are actively
engaging key stakeholders to
prepare for a full retinance of]
the Group's debt facilities
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Scction {72 statement (continued)

Ensure the pension scheme is
tairly treated by the Group
Regulur updates on
perfornmartce and strategy of
the business

Move towards sceli=sulTiciency
tor funding the scheme in the
medium term

Trustees™ mecetings tiake
place every quarter
aliended by the CFO whe
is the company appeinted
trustee

Regular communication
with the Trustees on
specitic Issucs

Agreed a method and
timeline for GMP
equalisation

Monitored and assessed the
funding position in tine with
medium term projections
Reviewed the hedging and
mvestment strategy and
approve trades 10 execute the
strategy

Monitor the performance of
the administrator of the
scheme

Pension .
Trustees
L ]
-
Community and .
Cnyirenment
*
[ ]

Respansible business
practices

Environmental impact of our
operations

Community partnerships

Regular engagement with
suppliers of Liberty
product to ensure that they
are mecting the ethical
standards Liberty requires.
Selectton and promotion of]
charity partners aligned to
Liberty values

Continued implementation ot]
cthical trade program in
relation to Liberty supplicrs
and lurther detailed mapping
of the cotton supply chain.
Ongoing development of
fabric bases with lower
environmentai impact

The outcome and actions explain the key involvement of the Directors in the period in respect to their seetion 172 obligations,

On behalf of the Board

Adil Mehboob-Khan
Director

23 June 2023
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Directors

The Directors of the company who were in otfice during the period and up to the stgning date of the financial statements, unless
otherwise stated, were:

Marco Anatricllo

Marco Capello

Emilio Bi Spiczio Surdo

Abdul Wahab Saud Albabtain

Adil Mehboob-Khan

Massimo Saracclu

Robert Unsworth

Chi Chung Cheung

Carlo Pirzio-Biroli

Finaneial risk management and principal risks and uncertaintics

Details of future devetopments, financial risk management. principal risks and uncertainties can be found in the Strategic Report on
pages 1 to 8 and form part of this report by cross- reference,

Directors’ indemnities

The Company maintains Directors® and Officers’ qualifying third party indemnity insurance, which provides appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its Directors. Qualifving indemnity insurance was in force throughout the period and remains in
foree as at the date of signing the financial statements.

Results and dividend

The Group generated a profit betore waxation of £712,000 (2022: loss of £7,165.000). The Dircctors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2022: £nif).

Going Concern

The Directers confirm that having reviewed the Group and parent company cash requirements for a period of thirteen months from
the date of signing these financial statements, they have a reasonable expectation that the Group and parent company have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence and to meet their liabilities as and when they fall due.

Basis of Asscssment

The Dircetors extended the period under review, beyond the minimuwm twelve months required by regulatory standards, 1o July 2024
to encompass the covenant test at the end of the financial quarter. This period is considered appropriate because:

e Italigns with the Group's approach to planning
+ Itis sufticient to cover all currently approved capital expenditure projects

o A pertod beyond this date is not concluded as being appropriate due to engoing economic uncertainty

9
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Goinp Concern (continucd)
Debt Facilities

In assessing the viability of the Group, the Dircctors have considered the Group's current figuidity and available facilitics {set out
in note 17 of the financial statements).

In September 2022 the group erdered into an amended lnance agreement which included the following:

¢ Upon repuyment of the finad €£1.000.000 tranche of the originat £13.000,000 CLIBLS loan in July 2023 the group will
have access to a new é-month revolving credit facility, with a value of £5.000,000 for a period of & nionths.

s Lenders agreed for elements of [uture interest payment to be comverted into debt.

*  The Group also agreed an extension of exasting facilities: the revolving eredit facility termination date was extended from
July 2023 1o October 2024 and the Senior Debt termination date was extended from January 2024 (o January 20235, The
Group is subscquently well posittoned to approach the market for a new debt facility in the second half of 2023

The Directors arc actively engaging key stakeholders to prepare for a full refinance of the Group's debt facilities: the refinance will
not only include existing tranches of debt but may alse encompass new facilities o fund future growth. The Group intends to finalise
the funding requirements by the summer of 2023, with the intention to go to market in the sccond half of the financial year. The
Group aims to sign a new senior facilities agreement by the end of April 2024. At the time of approving these financial statements,
the Directors have confidence from prospective lenders that the timeline outlined above is achievable based on the current risk
protile of the Group. Existing lenders have also indicated there is appetite to refinance.

Scenarios

The Group has successtully traded out of the COVID-19 pundemic. The Flagship store was the only channel impacted by COVID-
19 with both E-Commerce and Liberty Fabrics growing revenues in this period. The Dircctors are now well positioned to consider
growth initiatives and have assessed an initial 3-ycar plan which allows the Directors to make informed decisions regarding the
current obligations the Group faces, whilst also considering other geopolitical and macrocconomic risks.

The more important risk factors that may afiect the short-term plans for the group arise around the execution of the strateay and
changing consumer behaviour, especially considering current inflation and rising interest rates.

Downside scenarios management consider severe, but plausible in nature were run over the time period between the balance sheet
date and the period ending July 2024: these seenarios included a reduction in revenues, inflationary pressures on the cost base and
increases (o the UK interest rate commensurate with the interest terms that the Group expects Lo achieve upon its planned
relinancing,

The Group’s covenant requirements were tested against these downside scenarios and whilst there was sufficient headroom for cach
covenant requirement, if a combination of these downs side scenarios were to happen the Group has the option to call on a contracted
£4.000,000 remaining sharcholder commitment to ensure the headroom remains.

The Dircctors remaits confident that actions within their controt. such as the ability to reduce costs, capital expenditure and manage
working capital, can be implemented to ensure the Group and parent company would be able to comply with its liquidity and
leverage covenants.

Pust Balance Sheet Event

Post year end in April and May. Stamperia Olonia Srl raised three short term loans, for an accumulated amount of €1.500,000,

which were raised to support capital expenditure. All three tranches of debt totaling €500,000 cach have a term of six months
betore repayment talls due. These new loans are not secured against any Group usscts.

10
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Employment (including disabled employces)
Employee engagement and develppment

We pride oursehves at Liberty with a culture of openness and transparency with colleagues and have developed a programme of
communication from the Leadership Team. As part of these interactions. employees are made aware of the current state of the
business and the future plans of the Group.

It is Group policy to keep employees informed of the strategy. activities and financial performance of the Group and to encourage
them to take a wider interest in its aflaws. This is achieved ina variety of ways, including clectronic media, vperational reporting,
personal and Group briefing sessions. as well as consultation with employees or their representatives on a regulur basis so that their
views ran be taken into account in makimg decisions hkely to altect their interests. Commmunication is supplemented by a publication
ool including “Yammer™. an enterprise social network and the quarterly "Liberty Forum™ led by the senior management team.

We manage the ntajority of our recruitment via un in house Talent Team who are heavily focused on attracting a range of candidates
to ensure that we have a diverse and inclusive employee pool. We remain commitied to the personast development of our employeces
and continue o review innovative ways 1o ensure that employees have personal deselopment plans in place.

The Group 1s an equal opportunitics employer and s committed to developing a working culture which enables all employees o
make their own distinetive contribution. Employment policies are designed to be {air, equitable and consistent with the abilities of’
the emplovees and the needs of the Group. Applications [or employment by disabled persons are fully considered. bearing in mind
the aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of any member of staff becoming disabled. effort would be made to enable
their employment with the Group. It is the policy of the Group that the training, development and promotion of disabled persons
should, as far as possible, be the same as to that of other employecs. The health and satety of employees is important to the Group
and reviewed periodically in light of good practice and develeping legislation.

Environmental responsibility and health and safety

The Group considers that corporate social responsibility and cffective corporate govemnance are imporiant components of its
businesses. The Group is committed to fair treatment of all stakeholders in the business. and to responsible employment policies.

The Group's Tisk review assists the Directors in identilying and assessing risks that could affect the businesses of the Group, This
in turn cnables them to implement appropriate social, ethical and environmental policies in conjunction with the financial policies
of the Group. The Group does not operate in areas of high environmental risk. One of its principal environmental impacts arises
from energy consumption. with electricity now procured from renewable sources. The Group also seeks 1 reduce the impact of
paper usage by recycling and by the increasing use of online transmissions and clectronic data collection,

The Dircctors operate the business in pursuit of good environmental standards, including the following:

*  Respecting the environment in which the Group operates, whilst maintaining commercial viability and long term
profitability;

e Setiing objectives and targets and monitoring performance to ensure adherence to Group policies:
e Raising the environmental awareness of employees and customers,

o Working in partnership with suppliers and contractors to ensure effective management of environmental and social
impacts and to minimise any adverse impact of operations on the environment; and

e« Complying with relevant legislation and related requirements.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Environmental responsibility and health and safety (continued)

The Dircctors adopt high evels of health and safety at work. Health and safety considerations are addressed as follows:

e Providing a good working environment for eoapleyces and treating cployees with fairmess, dignity and respect;

«  Promoting a high standard ot health and safety for staf? and contractors;

e Operating an equal opportunitics policy for all job applicants: and

Complying with relevant legislation and related requirements.

The wltimaie responsibility for health and safety issues within the Group rests with the Chiet Executive Officer,

Environmental impact — energy consumption and greenhiouse gas emissions

The table below sets out a summary of Liberty™s UK energy usage, associated emissions, encrgy efficient actions and energy

pertormance.

I;Jtilny ared Scope 202223 consumption]  2022:23 consumption]  2021/22 consumption] 202 1:22 consumption
(KWh) (tCO2e (KWh) (1CO2e

Gascous and other tucls 94,924 17.29 109,902 20,14

(scope 1}

Grid supplied clectricity 2.554.927 4K8.53 2,806,252 389.76

(scope 2)

Transport fuels cnergy 10.006 33835 2.746 0.6

consumption

TOTAL 2.659.85 844017 2,918.900 610.3

Emissions intensity

Intensity Metric

2022723 tCO2¢ 1000m2

2021:221CO2e/1000m2

intensity metric - total floor arca

187,44

40.24




LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
for the 52 weck period ended 28 January 2023

Environmental responsibitiry and health and safety (continued)

The aboy ¢ data redlects consumption of sites where the company has the ability to influence energy management. Data is nod reported
where the company has limited or no ability to influence energy management (for example Tor concessions within the store). Scope
I and 2 consumption, CO2¢ cmission data and the Cmission Factor Database used are considered with the 2022 UK goy ernmient
envirommental reporting guidance, using the current published KWh grass caloritic value (CV) and KgC'02e relevant for the year
under review.

W are committed to year on year improvements in vur operational energy cfficiency. Examples of efficiency measures undertaken
during the period include a retrofit 1it programme to the Tudor shoptloor Hehting. replacing Metal Halide lamps for LED, 35 watts
down to 9.0 walls. Each light fitting requires moditication, this is carried out by the in-house maintenance team when a lamp fails,
the energy use reduction s 72% per fitting. The enerpy saving is equal to the cost of the replacement lamp resulting in instant
payback. This work i3 carried out across all {loors with circa 1000 fittings modified to date.

Scction 172 statement

All intormation in respect of our reporting requivements under $172 of the Companies Act is included in the Strategic Repori,
Statement as to disclosure of information to auditor

The Directers who held oifice at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are cach aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the Group and Parent's auditor is unaware: and each Director bas taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and o establish that the Group and
Parent's auditor is aware of that information,

Re-appointment of auditor

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

On behalt of the Board

Adil Mchboob-Khan
Director

23 June 2023

—
(]



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
for the 52 weck period ended 28 January 2023

Statement on Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the direetors to prepare tinancial statements tor cuch tfinancial vear. Under that law the directors have elected
to prepare the groupr wnd parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Adopted International Accounting Standards
m conformity with the Companies Act 2006, Under company law the directors must not approve the group ttnancial statements
uniess they are satisficd that they give a true and fair view of the state of aftairs of the group and the company and ol the profit or
loxs of the group Tor that period.

In prepartng these financial statements the directors are required to;

e sclect suitable accounting policics in accordance with TAS 8 Accounting Policies, changes in accounting estimates and
crrors and then apply them consistently:

o make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reltable, comparable and
understandable information;

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific reguirements in UK Adopted International Accounting
Standards is insufficient to enable users 10 understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the group’s financial position and financial performance:

s in respect of the group tinancial statements, state whether UK Adopted Interpational Accounting Standards has been
tollowed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ inrespect of the parent company financial statements, state whether UK Adopted International Accounting standards have
been followed, subjeet to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that the company and 7 or
the group will not continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate zecounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s
leansactions and disclose with reasonable accurucy al any time the financial position of the company and the group and to enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companics Act 2006 and with respect to the group financial statements,
Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation, They are also responsible for safeguarding the asscets of the group and parent company and hence
for tuking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregutarities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a strategic report and directors” report that
comply with that law and those regulations.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Liberty Zeta Limited (‘the parent company’) and its
subsidiaries {the "group’) for the 52 week pericd ended 28 January 2023, which comprise the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated and
parent company statements of financial position, consolidated and parent company statements of
changes in equity, consolidated and parent company statements of cash flow and the related notes 1
to 24 to the financial statements including a sumimary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial
statements is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards  The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financ:al
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, inciuding FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework™ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinicn:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 28 January 2023 and of the group's profit for the period then ended:;

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Adopted
International Accounting Standards,

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs (UK)) and
applicabte law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

tn auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matertal uncertainties relating to
events or conditions thal, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a peried of 13 months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue ta 31 July 2024

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect fo going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report. However because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted. this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report. other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are respongible for the other information
contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report. we do not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

Our responsibility s to read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other
information s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or vul knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rse to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial period for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

s the strategic report and directers’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its
environment abtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or directors’ report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act

2006 requires us to report to you i, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

» cerfain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have nol received all the information and expianations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ rasponsibilities statement set out on page 14, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satished that they give a true
and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of inancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
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liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement. whether due fo fraud or error. and to issue an auditar's report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basts of these financial statements

Fxplanatinn as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Irregutarities. including fraud. are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in ine with our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect irregularities. including fraud. The
risk of not detecting a materiai misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example. forgery or
intenticnal misrepresentations, or through collusion

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is explained
below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both
those charged with governance of the entity and management.

+ We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
Group and Parent Company and determined that the most significant are those that refate to the
reporting framework (UK Adopted International Accounting Standards; United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice and the Companies Act 2006). the relevant direct and indirect tax
compliance regulation in the United Kingdom, employment laws in the relevant jurisdictions and
reporting obligations in the UK including the Modern Slavery Act. In addition, the group has to
comply with laws and regulaticns relating to its operations, including health and safety. data
protection and anti-bribery and corruption.

« We understood how the Greoup and Parent Company comply with those frameworks by making
enquiries of management and those charged with governance to understand how the group
maintains its policies and procedures in these areas and corroborated this by reviewing
supporting documentation such as the Code of Conduct

s We obtained the Fraud and Corruption Perceptions index rating for all in-scope international
components hoting that no components were in higher risk locations.

The audit engagement partner reviewed the deliverables of all in scope component teams and
was involved in discussions with the component team engagement pariners. The audit
engagement partner physicaily visited one of the component teams in Japan and met the
component team engagement parther and local management, and physicaily attended the closing
meeting. Other appropriately senior staff performed the same for the other component team in
Italy.

We considered smaller components where higher risk may be present and performed specific
procedures to mitigate exposure to such risk.

« We communicated our identified fraud risk to all component teams and our expected approach to
auditing fraud risks. we evaluated the sufficiency of the component teams procedures

s  We assessed the susceptibility of the financiat statements to material misstatement, including
how fraud might occur by considering the risk of management override and by assuming revenue
to be & fraud risk

17



« We incorparated data analytics intc our testing of revenue and manual journais. We performed
procedures to address the fraud risk, including testing manual journals which were designed to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. We tested specific transactions back tc source documentation or
independent confirmations as appropriate.

» Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with
such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved reviewing minutes from the Board of
Directors, enquiries of management. engaging our forensics specialists and journal entry testing,
with a focus on manual journals and journals indicating significant unusual transactions identified
by specific risk criteria based on our understanding of the business.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at hitps:/fwww frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our repori

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have farmed.

e._N ‘BA /b-:7 Lt‘-—fgf

Zishan Nurmohamed {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory Auditor
London

13 JUNE 2o z,}
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

52 week period 52 week period
ended ended
28 January 2023 29 lanuary 2022

Note £°000 £7000
Revenue 2 184,932 149.6014
Cost of sales (78,357) {66,088}
Gross profit 106.575 83513
Selling and distribution costs (77.630) (68.941)
Administrative expenses {14,183) {10,200
Exceptional income 1.138 -
Exceptional costs 3 (2,434) (1433
Operating profit 3 13,460 2.937
Finance income 3 91 964
Finance expenses 5 (12,839} (11,000)
Profit/(loss) before tax 712 {7.165)
Taxalion §) (546) (1.447)
Prafit/(lass) far the financial period 166 (8.312y

All results relate to continuing operations. The notes on pages 27 to 64 form part of these financial statements.

19



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Note 52 week period 32 weck period
ended ended
28 January 2023 29 Janvary 2622
£'000 £'000
Profit/(toss) for the period L66 (8.312)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
[tems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Foreign exchange translation dilferences for foreign operations 688 (1497}
[tems that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Actuarial (lossygain on defined benefit pension plans ! (3.934) 1169
Deferied tax credit{charge) on defined beneiit pension scheme 6 761 (21 1)
Total other comprehensive expense for the period (2,.319) {8.851)

The notes on pages 27 1o 64 form part of these financial statements.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 28 Japuary 2023

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

Notc £000 £°000
Assels
Nen-current assets
Intangible assets 7 159,199 159570
Property, plant and cquipment 8 25,373 26,447
Right of use asscts 10 50,666 34738
Deferred tax asset 15 24,071 21.583
Employee defined benefit assct I 234 3.657
259,543 265995
Current assets
Inventories 12 43.952 35.252
Trade and other receivables 13 22,630 14.621
Tax recoverable 14 936 -
Cash and cash equivalents 14,410 22.240
81,928 72113
Total assets 341,471 338.108
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 21 956 956
Share premium 2 106,605 106.605
Capital redemplion reserve 104 104
Share based pavraent reserve 392 545
Translation reserve (34) {722)
Retained eamings (6.334) (3.327)
Total Equity 101,689 104,161
Non-current liabifities
Loans and borrowings 17 83.617 92,301
Lease liabilities 10 56.921 58182
Provisions 19 191 188
Share based payment lability 20 386 279
Employee benefit liabilities I 658 0657
Detorred tax tability 15 30,208 29.543
171,981 181.150
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6 46,740 41.423
Provisions 19 1,421 -
Loans and borrowings 17 17.346 8.723
Tax payable 14 202 364
Lease liabilitics 10 2,092 2.2%7
67,801 52,797
Total liabilities 239,782 233.947
Total cquity and liabilities 341,471 338,108

The financial stalements on pages 19 10 64 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and signed on its behall by:

Adil Mchboob-Khan
Director



LLIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 28 January 2023

28 January 2023

29 January 2022

Note £000 £°000
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 9 102,010 143 860
Current assets
Trade and other recctvables 13 7.383 7.528
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 16 3 2
Net current assets 7,380 7.526
Total assets less current liahilities 109,390 109 386
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one vear
Cash settled share based payment liability 20 386 279
Net Assets 109,004 169107
Equity
Share capital 21 956 956
Share premium 2 106,605 106,605
Retained earnings 947 897
Share based payment reserve 392 545
Capital redemption reserve 104 104
Total Equity 109,004 109,107

The notes on pages 27 to 64 1orm part of these tinancial statemoents.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Adil Mehboob-Khan
Director
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Share Sharce (_aplta! Share Based Franslation Retained . N
R . Redemption  Payment o P I'otal Equity
capital premiwm ) ) reserve earnings
Reseryve Reserve

£°000 £ 000 £7000 £000 £08 £000 £7001
Dujance at 30 Junuary 932 100,629 104 333 775 4,027 106,800
Lmﬁ for the financial ) . ) ) _ (8317) (®312)
periodd
thcr comprehensive ) ) _ ) (1.497) 953 (539)
oo
Total comprehensive ) ; ) ) (1.197) (7.354) (X85 1)
capense
Share based payiment - - - 21z - - 212
Issuc of preferenee shares 24 5.976 - - - - 64100
B“,'Z',‘;” at29 January 956 106,605 104 545 (722) (3.327) 104161
Pmlm tor the financial R ) ) ) } Lo6 L66
period
Ql|101‘ comprehensive ) . 3 ) 638 (3.173) (2.485)
income
Tma] cnmprch@swc R ) ) ) v (3.007) (2.319)
income {expensg)
Share basced payment - - - (1533) - - {153)
Balance at 28 January
2023 956 106,605 104 392 34 (6,334) 101,689

The notes on pages 27 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

Share Share (,a{n.tul Share bascd Retained Total

- . redemption payment R S

capital premium ) earnings equity

reserve reserve .
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £7040 £7000
Balance at 30 January 2021 932 100,629 104 333 829  102.827
Profit for the financial period - - - 68 68
lssue of preference shares 24 5.976 - - - 6.000
Share Based Pavment - - - 212 - 212
Balance at 29 January 2022 956 106,605 104 545 897 104.107
Profit for the financial period - - - - 50 50
Issuc of preference shares - - - - - -
Sharc Based Payment - - - {153) - {153)
Balance at 28 January 2023 956 106,605 104 392 947 109,004

The capital reserve was created on the expiry of an option Liberty Zeta held with threc subsidiary companies to buy back its own

share capital.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

52 week period ended

37 week period
ended

Notes 28 January 2023 29 lanuary 2022
£'000 £7000

Profit/{less) for the financial period 166 {8.312)
Taxation 6 546 1.147
Profiloss) before taxation 712 {7.005)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/{loss) for the period to net cash
tlows
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 2,690 2214
Tinaice expenses 5 12.839 11.066
Exceptional cost - goodwill impairment 3 - 545
(Other exceptional costs 3 2,434 888
Exceptional income 3 (1.138) -
Share based payment charge 20 45) 305
Finance income 3 (21} {904)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 4,421 5.220
Loss on disposal of assets 279 -
Depreciation of right of use assets 10 3,862 4.130
Cash flows (used in)/from operating activities
Change in inventories (8.700) (6.870
Change in trade and other receivables (8,009) 5.156
Change in trade and other payables 7.160 5.493
Tax paid (L,540) (633)
Payment of exceptional costs (1,507) (B8K)
Reeeipt of exceptional income 1,138 -
Pefined benelit pension scheme coniributions 11 (1,038) (18)
Net cash generated from operating activities 13,467 18463
Cash flows (used in)/from investing activitics
Interest received 5 1 2
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired Y (225) -
Purchase of property. plant and equipment ¥ (3.258) (7.978)
Purchasc of intangible assets 7 (2,117) (733)
Net cash used investing activities (5,599) {(8.70%)
Cash flows (uscd in)/from financing activities
[nterest paid (9,044) {4.346)
Proceeds from the issue of preference share capital 21 - 6.000
Proceeds trom the drawdown of borrowings 2,808 7.188
Repayment of borrowings (2.66%) (869}
Nebt finance costs {126) (136)
Payment of leasc liabilities 10 (4,920 {5.040)
Payment of finance lease liabilities (542) (617)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activitics (14,493) 2,130
Opening cash and cash equivaients 22,24¢ 12,578
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6,625) 11.884
E{fect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (1,205) (2,222)
Closing cash and cash equivalents 14,410 22.240

The notes on pages 27 to 64 form part of these financial statements,



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

52 week period
ended
28 January 2023

52 week period
erded
29 January 2022

£°0060 £ 000
Profit for the financial period 50 68
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period to net cash flows
Share based payment (195) {188)
Net cash used in operating activities
Change in trade and other receivables 145 (2,016)
Change in trade and other pavablcs - (3.864)
Net cash used in operating activities - (6.000)
Cash Nows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of preference share capital - 6.000
- 6,000

Net cash flows from financing activities

Opening cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and ¢ash equivalents

Closing cash and cash equivalents

The notes on pages 27 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 weck period ended 28 January 2023

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements and parent company linancial statements have heen prepared in accordance with UK adopted
Inernaional Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, Liberty Zeta Limited is the
largest and smallest undertaking for which consolidated Group financial statements are prepared.

The Parent Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2000 and Financial Reporting
Standard 101 "Reduced disclosure framework” ("FRS 10171 FRS 101 cnables the financial stutements of the Parcat Company to
be prepared in accordance with IFRS but with certain disclosure exemptions. The main areas of reduced disclosure are in respect ol
sharc-based payments, financial instruments. the cash flow statement, and refated party transactions with Group companies. The
accounting policics adopted for the Parent Company. are otherwise consistent with those wsed for the Group., As pernutted by
Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Tncome Statement of the Company is not prosented as part of the financial statemuents,

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are considered material to the finaneial
statements.,
Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and it's subsidiaries. The parent company [inancial statements
present information about the Company as a separate entity and do not include information pertaining to the rest of the Group.
Liberly Zeta Limited is the only level at which the Group consolidates its results. Liberty Zewa Limited is a limited company,
incorporated and domiciled in the UK.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in UK Sterling, which is the Company's functional currency. All financial
information has been rounded to the nearest thousand pounds or as indicated throughout,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in aceordance with applicable accounting standards and under
the historical cost convention meodified by revaluation of financial assets and liabilitics held at fair value through profit and loss.
The accounting policies set oul below have. unless otherwise stated, been applicd consistently. The Directors have the power to
amend the financial statements afler they have been tssued if required.

{a) Statement of Compliviee

These financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordanee with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2000, The Company is taking advantage ot the
exemption in 3408 of the Companics Act 2000 not 1o present its individual statement of comprehensive income and related notes
that form a part of these approved {inancial statenents. The Company's profit tor the yeoar was £30.000 (2022: £119,000).

Going concern

The Directors confinm that having reviewed the Group and parent company cash requirements for a period of thirteen months from
the date of signing these financial statements, they have o reasonable expeetation that the Group and parent company have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence and to meet their Liabilities as and when they tall due.

Basis of Assessment

The Direetors extended the period under review, beyond the minimum twelve months required by regulatory standards, to July 2024
Lo eneompass the covenant test at the end of the financial quarter. This period is considered appropriate becausc:

e [taligns with the Group’s approach to planning
e [Itis sufticient to cover all currently approved capital expenditure projects

s A period beyond this date is not concluded as being appropriate due 1o ongoing economic uncertainty
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 weck period ended 28 Januwary 2023

I. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)

Going concern (continued)
Debt Fuacilities

In assessing the viability of the Group. the Directors have considered the Group’s current liguidity and available facilities (sct out
in note |7 of the financial statemends).

In September 2022 the group entered into an amended finance agreement which included the following:

s Upon repayment of the final £10,000.000 tranche of the original £15.000.000 CLIBLS toan in July 2023 the group will
have access to a new 6-month revolving credit facility, with a value of £5.000,000 {or a peried of 6 months.

* Lenders agreed lor elements of future interest payment to be converted into debt,

s The Group also agreed an extension ol existing facilities: the revolving credit facility termination date was extended from
Fuly 2023 to October 2024 and the Senior Debt termination date was extended trom Janaary 2024 to January 2025. The
Group is subsequently well positioned to approach the market for 2 new debt facility in the second half of 2023,

The Directors are actively engaging key stakcholders to prepare for a full refinance of the Group's debt facilities: the refinance will
not only include existing tranches of debl but may also encompass new facilitics 1o fund future growth. The Group intends to nalise
the funding requirements by the summer of 2023, with the intention to go to market in the second half of the financial year. The
Group aims to sign a ncw senior facilitics agreement by the end of April 2024 At the time of approving these financial statements,
Directors have contidence from prospective lenders that the timeline outlined above is achievable based on the current risk profile
of the Group.

Scenarios

The Group has successfully traded out of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Flagship store was the only channel impacted by COVID-
19 with both E-Commerce and Liberty Fabrics growing revenues tn this period. The Directors are now well positioned to consider
growth initiatives and have assessed an mitial 3-year plan which allows the Dhrectors to make informed decisions regarding the
current obligations the Group faces, whilst also considering other geopolitical and macroeconomic risks.

The moere impottant risk Factors (that may affect the short-term plans for the group arise around the execution of the strategy and
changing consumer behaviour. espeeially considering current inflation and rising interest rates,

Downside seenarios management consider severe, bat plausible in nature were run over the time period between the balance sheet
datc and the period ending July 2024; these scenarios included a reduction in revenues, inflationary pressurcs on the cost base and
increases 1o the UK interest rate commensurate with the interest terms that the Group cxpects o achieve upon its planned
refinancing.

The Group's covenunt requirements were tested against these downside seenarios and whilst there was sutficient headroom tor cach
covenant requircinent, it a combination of these downs side scenarios were to happen the Group has the option to call on & contracted
£4.000.000 remaining sharcholder commitment to ensure the headroom remains.,

The Directors remain conlident that actions within their control. such as the ability to reduce cosis, capital expenditure and manage
working capital, can be implemented to ensure the Group and parent company would be able to comply with its Liquidity and
[cverage covenants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The Group has applied the folowing interpretations for the first time in these financial statements:

. Reference to Conceptual Framework « amendments to [FRS 3

. Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before intended use - amendments to 1AS 16
. Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract - Amendments to 1AS 37

. Arnnual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2015-2020

The application of these new interpretations and amendments did not have a material tmpact on the financial statements.

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not yet effective and have not been adopred by
the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements trom the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Dilution gains and losses on increases in minority interests. where no change of control results,
are recognised directly in cquity. Where necessary, acceunting policies of subsidiarics are changed on acquisition to align them
with the policies adopted by the Group. Intra-Group balances and trunsactions and any unrealised income and cxpenses arising from
intra-Group transactions. are climinated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Where neeessary. adjustments are wade to the information included in the financial statements of subsidiarics to bring their
accounting policies in fine with those used by the Group. tn order 10 reflect that information on a consistent basis with the rest of’
the Group. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights to
variable returns from its invelvement with the investee and has the ability to affect these returns through its power over the investee.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting poticies and the reported amounts of assets, liabiities, income and expenses. Actual resitlts may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected,

Tn particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policices
that have the most significant cffeet on the amount recognised in the tinancial statements are described in the following notes:

Judgenmenis:

=  Carrying vatue of goodwill - an area of judgement is the number of CGUs. The CGUs have not been changed from the
previous financial year; being the Retail Business, the Wholesale Business (Liberty Fabrics and Liberty Brand) and
Christy’s; with each of these units continuing to operate using separate key plattorms. Further information has been
provided in Note 7.

e Alternative performance measures (APMs) - Management exereise judgement in determining the adjustments to apply to
IFRS measurement in order to derive suitable APMs. APMs are used as Management believe these measures provide
additional usetul information on the trends, performance and position of the group. APM's used by Management have been
disclosed in the strategic report.

s Beauty subscription - Management exercise judgement in determining the mmount of revenue recognised in relation to the
Group's Beauty subscription program. Further information has been provided within the revenue accounting policy in Note
1.

o Usctul economic lite of the Brand and Design Archives - Management consider the life of these intungtble asscts to be
mdefinite, Further information has been provided in Note 7.

e Exceptional items — are those items thai the Group considers to be material in nawre and out of the normal course of

business that should be brought to the reader’s attention in understanding the Group's financial performance. Exceptional
items arising in the period have been disclosed in Note 3.
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

Estimuies:

s Defined Benelit Obligutions - Within the defined benelit obligation, there are estimates used in relation to inflation rates,
fite expectancy and asset volatility. A change in these assumptions and estimaies would result in a change to the
obligation. Actuarial experts hay ¢ been used to determine the estimates and these are reviewed al the balance sheet date.
Further information has been provided in Note 11,

o hmpatrment - the assumptions used to assess value in use Tor impairment testing of the Ciroup's assets, Lo, growth rate,
discount rate and sales and margin assumptions. Further information has been provided in Note 7

e Inventory - the assumptions used to assess the net realisable valuc of inventory i.e. assessment by scason and ebsolescence.
Listimates are based on historical trends and post year end tading performance. Further information has been provided in
Note 12:

#  Leases - the assumptions in applying discount rates and it assessing options (o extend and break clauses to cashflows in
order o coleulate the right of use usset and lease liability. The discount rate is based on the incremental borrowing rate. A
change in discount rate or options would result in a change in the asset and hability recorded within the financial statements.
Further information has been provided in Note 1)k

s  Taxation - Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused 1ax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit witl
be available against which the losses can be wtilised, Significanl management judgement 1s required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised. based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits,
together with futuee tax planning stralegics. The Group has £6.137.000 (2022: £7.960.000) which comprises of the
origination and reversal of timing differences, adjustments in respect of prior periods and the effect of tax rate changes, On
this busis. the Group has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried torward. If the
Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profit and equity would have increased by £3,107.000
(2022: £3,073.000} Further information has been provided in Note 6.

»  Share based payment - Estimating fair valuc for share-based payment transactions requires delermination of the most
appropriate valuation model. which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option or
appreciation right, velatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The Group initially measures the cost
of cash-settled transactions with employees using a Monte-Carlo simulation to determine the fair value of the liability
incurred. For cash-scttled sharc-based payment transactions, the hability needs to be remeasured at the end of each
reporting period up to the date of setilement. with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, This requires a
reassessment of the estimates used at the end of cach reporting period. For the measurcment of the fair valie ol equity-
seitled transactions with employees at the gramt date, the Group uses a Monte-Carlo simulation. The assumptions and
models used for estimating fair valuc for sharc-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 20,

»  Development costs - The Group capitalises costs for product development projects. Initial capitalisation of costs is hased
on management's judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development
project has reached a defined milestone according o an established project management model. In determining the amounts
1o be capitalised. management makes assumptions regarding the expected Tuture cash generation of the project. discount
rates 10 be apphied and the expected period of benefits. This amount includes significant investment in the development of
IT systems and Design Archive. disclosed m Note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the dates of the iransaction. Monctary assels and liabilities denominated in toreign currencies at the reporting date arc
retranslated o the functional curreney at the fereign exchange rate ruling ai that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on
transactions are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monctary assets and liabilitics
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the tair
value is determined.

The assets and liabilities of toreign operations, including goodwill and fair vafue adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated
at the fareign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average
rate for the period where this rate approximates the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates ol the transactions. Exchange
ditferences arising from the translation of foreign operations and non-monetary assets liabilities arc taken dircctly to the iranslation
reserve.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and neasurement

Financial assets are classitied. at initial recognition, as subsequently measwred at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive mcome (OC1), and fair vatue through profit or loss.

The classilication of financial assels at inwtial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measurcs a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that de not contain a
significant financing component or for whick the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.

[n order for a Nnancial asset to be classilied and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs o give rise to cash
flows that are 'solely paymemis of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This asscssment is referred to
as the SPPI test and is perforined af an instrument tevel. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPP1 are classitied and
measured at fair value through profit or loss. irrespective of the business model,

The Group's business medet for managing tfinancial asscts refers o how it manages its financial assets in erder to generate cash
flows, The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows. sclling the financial
assets, or both. Financial asscts classified and mcasured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold Financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
OCT are held within a business model with the objective of bath holding to collect contractual cash lows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial asscts that require delivery of assets within a time frame cstablished by regulation or convention in
the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 1.c., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
assel.

Subseguent meastrement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, {inancial assets are classified in four categories:

e Fmancial assers at amortised cost (debt imstruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or Toss
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial asscts (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instrimenty)
Financial asscts atamortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR )} method and are subject to umpairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derccognised. modificd or impaired. The Group's financial assets
at amortised cost include trade and other receivables.

Finaneial assers ar fuir vadue throungh profit and loss

Financial asscts classified as held for trading and other assets designated as such on inception are included in this category, Financial
assets are classitied as held for trading if they are acquired for sale in the short term. This category ingludes derivative financial
instruments entered mto by the Company that are not designated us hedging instruments in hedge reationships as defined by IFRS
Y. Derivatives. including separated embedded derivatives are also classificd as held for trading unless they are designated as etivetive
hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial habilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, leans and
borrowings. payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate. All financial
liabilitics arc recognised initially at fair vatue and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group's financial hiabilities include trade and other pavables, loans and borrowings including bank overdralts.
and derivative financial instruments.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, ftnancial labilities are classified ax below:

*  Financial tiabilitics at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
Financial Habilities at amortised cost flodans and borrowings)
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition. interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured ar amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account uny discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EER. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of prefit or loss. This category generally applies
to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
tfinancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantiaully modified, such an exchange or moditication is treated as the derccognition of the original liability and the

recognition of a new liability.

The difterence in the respective carrying amouats is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}

Financial liabilities {(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilives are offset, and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
if there is @ currently enforecable legal vight to offset the recognised amounts and there s an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the asscts and scttle the labilities simultancously.

Non-derivative finaneial mstruments comprise: trade and other receiy ables, cash and vash cquivalents, toans and borrowmgs and
trade and other payables.

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair v alue and measured for expected credit losses, A provision for impairment ol trade
reccivables 15 also established when there s evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
eriginal terms of the receivables. The movement in the provision is recognised 1n the come statement. Trade pavables, defined as
financial liabilities in accordance with IFRS 9, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at antortised cost
using the effective interest method. Al of the trade payables wre non-interest bearing.

Subsidiary companies

The subsidiary undertakings of the Company are all engaged in retait activities, fubric printing, wholesale distribution or licensing
activitics. or act as intermediary holding, {inancing or management ¢companies for such operations. Details of the Company’s
subsidiary undertakings are set out in Note 9.

Goodwill

Croodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acguisition over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. When the excess is negative
(negative goodwilll, itis recognised immediately in the income statement.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a minority interest in a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of the additional invcstment
ever the carrying amount of the net assets acquired at the date of exchange.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses, In respect of equity accounted investees. the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount ol the investment.

Intangible Assets

The Group classifies intangible assets inte the following categories: Brands, Design Archive. Customier Refationships and
Concession Agreements.

Brundy

In accordance with [FRS 3, brands acquired by the Group are initially included in the financial statements at their fair value. An
annual fmpairment assessment of the useful life of the brands is performed at the ead of cach financial period. Where this reveals a
surplus, the salue of the brand is retained, where it reveals o deticit, the brand is written down and the deficit is charged to the
income statement. Subscquent expenditure on the brand is recognised in the income statement when incurred.

The Dircetors consider that the Group's brand has an indefinite uscful life due 1o the durability of its underlying businesses which
has been demonstrated for over 100 years.

Design Archive - acquired

The intangible design archive acquired by Liberty Zeta upon acquisition consists of ntellectual property which has been used to
inspire new designs and leverage the Liberty brand. The acquired Design Archive has been considered to have an indefinite useful
lite as the Group continues to use and leverage the fabric designs to generate sales and profits. This is tested for impairment annualty
in line with IFRS.
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Intangibile Asscts (confinucd)

Design rehive < imternally gencrated

The Group adds to its digital design archive each period with new seasonal, capsule and bespoke collections created by the in house
design team or purchased from independent artists. The costs associated with these new designs. being salaries and other directly
attribuiable development cosis are capitalised in line with the internally generated intangible asset policy detailed below:

Rescarch costs are cxpensed as incurred.

Development expenditure on an individual project is recognised as an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset sa that it will be available for use

it will gencerate future ceconomic benefits

the availability of resources to complete the assct and:
the ability te measure reliably the expenditure during devclopment

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure, intangible assets are stated at cost. The internally generated Design
Archive has been considered to have an indefinite usetul life as the Group continues to use and leverage the fabric designs to
generate sales and profits. This is tested for impairment annually in line with [FRS.

Assets under construction are not amortised.

Customwer Relutionships

The Group has identifiable customer relationships within the Fabrics division. These relationships have an identifiable income
stream generated from the customer and a continued expeetation that the relationship will be renewed. These customer relationships
are ongoing and are considered 1o have a useful lite of L years,

Concession Agreements

The Group has a pumber of contractual agreements in place with concession providers in the Retail Flagship store, These contractual
relationships typically last tor one year but many have been in place for a number of years atter renewals, The concession agreements
arc considered to have a uscful life of 8 vears.

Computer Sofivare
Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost of computer sollware using the straight line method over the estimated useful life
of five yeurs.

Assets under construction are not amortised until they are placed into service.
Impairment

In accordance with TAS 36 the carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories are reviewed at each
reporting date to deternmine whether there 1s any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists. the asset’s recoverable
amount is cstimated. For infangible asscts that have an indefinite useful life. the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting
date.

The recoverable amount of an usset or cash generating unit i the higher ot its value in use and its fair value. less costs o sell. In
assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money, and the risks specific to the assct. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are grouped together into the smallest Group ot assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Groups of asscts (the cash generating unit).
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I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Impairment (continucd)

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount ot an asset or its cash-generating unitGroup of units exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment lesses are recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generaling units are allocated {irst 1o reduce the carrying amount of any intapgible asser allocated o the unit and then to reduce the
carrying amount of other asseis in the unit on a pro-rata basis.

Lpainment losses, ot assets other than goodwilll recognised in prior periods are assessed at cach reporting date for any indications
that the loss has deereased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used Lo
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 1o the exient that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carryving amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation. if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Impatrment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed,

Property, plaat and cquipment
Property. plant and equipment arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losscs.

Depreciation is charged so as w write oft the cast of property. plant and equipment, less residual amounts, using the straight line
method. over their following estimated useful lives:

Plant and machinery 3 to 15 years
Fixtures and Fittings 510 L0 years
Computer Equipment 310 5 vears
Leasehold improvements 33 vears

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the visks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are classified as finance
leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower ol their tair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated impainment
losses.

Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are placed into service.
Tungible Design Archive and Heritage Assets

The Group's tangible design archiv e consists of artwork, printers” impressions. patlern books and fabric swatch books. The design
archive is deemed to have an indefinite usctu! life and the Group continues to use the archive w inspire fabric designs. which
generale sules and profit. The Group's heritage assets are 1angible assets with historical and artistic qualities and consist of

stlverware. paintings and furniturce, These are deemed to have an indebhnite useful life.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the (Company pays fixed contributions into a separate

entily and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

o]
[
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Defined benefir pluns

The Group's ret obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is caleuliated separately for cach plan by estimating the
amount of tuture benetit that employees have camed in return for their service in the prior periods: that benetit is discounted o
determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid price} are deducted. The Group determines the net interest
on the net defined benefit liability ‘asset tor the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the annual period 10 the pet defined benefit liability asset.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have matrity dates
approximating the terms of the Group's obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to
be paid.

Remeasurements arising from defined benelit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest)
and the effect of the asset ceiling (F any, excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately in other comprehensive
income and all other expenses related to detined benetit plans in employec benefit expenses in the income statcment.

When the benetits of a plan are changed. or when a plan is curtailed. the portion of the changed benetit related to past service by
cmployees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in the income statement when the plan amendment or
curtailiment oceurs.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is Himited to the present value of benetfits available in the form
of any [uture refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes into account the adverse effect of any mininum
funding requircinents.

Share-based pavarent transactions

Sharg-based payment arrangements in which the Group receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity Instruments
are accounted for as equity-settied share-based payment transactions, regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained by the
Crvoup.

The grant date fair value of share-based payments awards granted 1o employees is recognised as an emplovee expense, with 2
corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the eniplovees become unconditionally entitled (o the awards. The fair value
of the awards granted ts measured using an option valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
awards were granied, The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted o retlect the actual number of awards for which the related
service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense 15 based
on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. IFor share-
based payment awards with non-vesting conditions. the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured (o reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outeomes.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Group receives goods or services by incurring a liability to transter cash or other
asscts that is based on the price of the Group’s equity instruments are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. The fair
vatue of the amount payable 10 employees is recognised as an expense. with a corresponding increase in liabilitics. over the period
in which the cmiployees become unconditionally entitled to payent. The liability is vemeasured at cach balance sheet date and at
settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as personnel expense in protit or loss.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash und cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held
at call with financial institutions. Bunk overdrafts arc shown within borrowings in current liabilitics.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Group has a present fegal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event and i 1s probable that an ourflow of economic henefits will be required to settle the obligation. 1f the etfeet is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash tlows at a pre-tax rate that retlects current market
assessnments of the time value of moncey and the risks specific to the liability.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 82 week period ended 28 January 2023

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the Jower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the standard cost prineiple and includes
expenditure incurred 1n acquiring the tmventories, production or conversion ¢osts and other costs in bringing them to their exasting
location and condition.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods provided
in the normal course of business. net of statl discounts and is stated net of value added tax and other sales-related taxes. Revenue
trom the sale of goods is recognised when a customer obtaing control of a good and thus has tire ability to direct the wse and obuin
the benefits trom the good.

Liberty Retail revenue on Flagship store sales of goods and commission on concession sales arc recognised when goods are sold to
the customer. Liberty Retail c-commerce and Liberty Fabric Limited sales are recognised when there is a transfer of conwrol of
goods at a point in time.

Breakage revenue from gift vouchers and gift coins sold by the Group is recognised based on historic redemption rates and
subsequently on redemption of the gift voucher or gift coin,

Customer incentives are recognised as a performance obligation as they arise and are deducted trom revenue in the period in which
they are accrued.

It s the Group's policy to sell its retail products to the end customer with 4 right of retum. Accumulated experience is used to
consider the need for a provision for such returns on an annual basis.

The Group has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements excluding commissions carned frem concessions safes
as it controls the services and is responsible tor risk associated with the service before transfer to the customer.

The Group also recognises revenue from a contract to provide services, which for the Group comprises of o subscription service,
which is recognised over the period that the subseription relutes to in accordanee with the stage of completion of the contract. The
Group offer monthly subscriptions, which are all deferred upon receipt of subscription payment. Revenue 1s recognised when all
the following conditions arc satisfied:

. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. The stage ol completion of the contract at the end of the linancial vear can be measured reliably;
. The costs incurred and the costs to complete the contract can be measured veliably.

Revenue is not recognised in exeess of the total subscription consideration reccived.

Expensces

Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises the cost of goods sold, together with the direct costs incurred i managing and operating the Group’s
operating activitics.

Fxceptional itens

Exceptional items are non-recurring material items which are outside the nermal scope of the Group’s ordinary activities. These
1icms are material by size and occurrence.

Finance income and cxpenses

Financing expenses comprise interest expense, the amortisation of deferred financing costs and net foreign exchange losses that are
recognised n the income statement (see foreign curreney accounting policy).

Finance income comprises interest inconte on funds invested and net forcign exchange gains that are recognised in the income

statement (see foreign currency accounting policy). Interest income and expense is recognised in the income statement as it acerucs,
using the effective imterest rate method. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis,
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the peried comprises current and deferred 1ax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that 1 relates to iterms recognised directly inequity. in which case it is recognised in equity. Deluired tax assets and Habilities
arise from timing differeaces between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial staitements and their recognition tor taxation
purposes. In accordance with TAS12, deferred tax 1s provided in respeet of all timing differences that have originated, but not
reversed. at the reporting date, that may give rise to an obligation to pay more or less tax in the future. Deferred tax is not recognised
when fixed assets are revalued unless by the reporting date there is a binding agreement to sell the revalued assels and the gain or
Joss expected to arise on sale has been recognised in the tinancial statements,

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when. on the basis of all available evidence it can be
regarded as more likely than not. that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted hasis, Deferred 1ax assets are reviewed at each
reparting date and ave reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefic will be realised.

Leases

Leases are recognised on the statement of financial position with both an asset and liability. At inception, the asset and liability are
of equal value,

Operating leases of Tow value or short term leases are recorded as an expense in the incame statement as they are incurred. taken as
an 1IFRS 16 practical expedient.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the fease payments that are not yet paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. on a portfolio basis. Lease liabilities are subsequeatly measured at amortised cost
and are inereased by the interest charge and decrcased by the lease payments made. Lease Habilities are remcasured when there is
a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or as appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether
a renewal option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a break clause is reasonably certain not o be excreised. The Group have
exercisced judgement as to whether these should be vsed to determine the leasc liability.

Right-of-usc asscts arc subscquently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liabilities. The asset is depreciated on a straight line basis over the life ol the lease.

Debt/equity
Preference shares are classed as equity instruments in the financial statements as:
e the preference shares include no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another tinancial asset to another entity; and

o they include no contractual obligation to exchange financial assets or financial Habilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable to the issucr.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

2. REVENUE

The Group has disaggregated revenue into various categories in the following table which is intended to depict the nature. amount

and timing of revenue and cash flows.

Selling channel

52 week period ended 28 January 2023
Liberty Retait

Liberty Fabrics

Other

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Geographical market®

52 week period ended 28 January 2023
United Kingdom

EMEA

APAC

Americas

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Selling channel

52 week period ended 29 January 2022
Liberty Retail

Liberty Fabries

Other

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Geographical market*

52 week period ended 29 January 2022
United Kingdom

EMEA

APAC

Americas

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Liberty Brand
32,693

57,496

2.404

62,595

Product types

Other Brands

Product tyvpes
Other Brands

Liberty Brand
40,497

20,580

23,889

7.024

92,595

Liberty Brand
21,532

54,463

2019

78,034

Liberty Brand
28,9359

19927

21,725

7423

78,034

Product tvpes

77,350
12,019

2,968
92,337

80.165
12,172

92.337

Other Brands

Product types

56.408
13,454

1.705
71,567

Other Brands

58,113
13,454

71,567

Total
110,045
69.515
5,372
184,932

Total
120,662
32,752
23.889
7.629
184.932

Total
77.960
67917

3.724

149,601

Total
87.072
33.381
21.725

7.423

149,601

All revenue from contracts with customers is recognised on transfer of goods at a point in time. All revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised on transter of services over a period of time. The performance obligations for each revenuc stream are
explained in the accounting policies in Note 1. Trade receivables arising from revenue 1s included in Note 13, Included within Other
Brands within Liberty Retail revenue ts £259.000 (2022: £884.000) in relation to breakage on the loyalty scheme. The Beauty Drop
stibscription scheme is only oftered to customers in the United Kingdom. £4.931,000 (2022 £nil) is included within Liberty Brand
and Other Brands within Liberty Retail revenue, and is recognised onver time. All other revenue is recognised at a peint in time.,

*Based on the country of sale.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

3. OPERATING PROFIT

52 week period ended 52 weck period ended

28 January 2023 29 January 2022
The operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting) the following: £7000 17000
Depreciation of plant and equipment 4,421 5,220
Depreciation right of use asscts 3,802 4.130
Amortisation ol intangible assels 2,690 2218
Loss on disposal of tngible assets 229 -
Loss on disposal on intangible assets S0 -
Piolit on disposal of RO asset {40) -
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit of these financial statements 145 182
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries 281 200
Non audit services:
Audit related assurunce 11 I
Tax and other ady isory 20 -
Exceptional income (1,138} -
Exeeptional costs 2,434 1.433
Foreign cxchange gains (213) (915}

Exceptional items

Non-recurring and material transaclions outside the ordinary course of busingss arc treated as cxceptional items. Items in the
period include:

Revovery of VAT totalling £1,138.000 (2022: £nil) following the creation of a Bespoke Retail Scheme Agreement with HMRC,
The balance has been treated as faxable income.

Restructuring costs of £722.000 were incurred in the period as the business was restructured 1o adapt (o a post COVID-19
environment (2022: £nil). The balance has been treated as a tax deductible expense.

Recoganition of an incentive scheme relating to a historical period totalling £582.000 (2022 £nil). The balance has been treated as
atax deductible expense.

One off fitigation provision of £203.000 relating to a licensing claim (2022: £nil). The balance has been treated as a tax
deductible expense.

One off refurbishiment costs in relation to the Flagship store £nil (2022; £888,000), The prior year balunce was treated as eligible
for capital allowances,

Impairment of goodwill totalling £nil (2022 £345.000). The prior year balance was treated as a disallowable expense in the
corporation tax returm.

Impairment of ROU Asscts totalling £927.000 (2022: £nil}. The balance has been treated as a movement in deferred tax not
recogniscd.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

4. STAFF COSTS AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The average monthly sumber of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the period. analysed by catcgory, was

as follows:

52 weck period

52 week period

ended cended

28 January 2023 29 lanuary 2022

Number Number

Design and Production 233 197
Selling and distribution 369 349
Administration 106 120
708 Hho

The uggregate payroll costs of the persons were as follows:

52 week period

52 week period

ended ended
28 January 2023 29 January 2022
£'000 £7000
Wages and salaries 25,444 24,007
Social sceurity costs 2,603 2218
Other pension costs 1,1H 1.024
Sharc-hascd payment (45) 205
Grant income (76) (594)
29,037 26,960
Directors’ emoluments
Group
Remuncration of £1,422.000 (2022: £1.204,000), including pension contributions of £66,000 (2022: £57.000) was paid by
subsidiary companics 1n respect of four (2022: three) Directors services. It is not possibic to apportion these amounts tor

qualitying services to this company.

The highest paid Director received remuneration, including benefits, of £1,038.000 (2022: £850,000). including pension
contributions of £32.000 (2022: £28,000). Retirement benefits were accruing o two directors (2022: two) in respect of defined
contribution pension schemes. No other fees were paid to Directors in respect to services provided (2022 nil).

Company

The Company had no employees during the period. The Directors did not receive remuneration from the Company in respect of
their services 1o the Company during the period {2022: nil). Four Directors (2022 three) received remuneration from a subsidiary
of the Company.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 Janunary 2023

§. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Finance inconwe arose as tollows:

32 weck period

52 week period

cnded ended
28 January 2023 29 Fanuary 2022
£'000 £'000

Finance income
Tulerest income on cash deposits 1 2
Interest on pension scheme asscts 90 40
Gain on translation ot loan - 922
Total finance income for the period 91 Q64

52 week period

52 week period

ended ended
28 January 2023 29 January 2022
£'600 £'000

Finance expense
Interest on loans (8.563) {7,203)
Amortisation of deferred finance costs (984) {986)
Loss on translation of loan (455) -
Lecase liability interest (2.747) (2.802)
Overdraft interest expense (36) (39)
Other interest expense (54) (36)
Total linance expense [or the period {12.839) (11.066)

6. TAXATION

The taxation charge for the period in the Income Statement arose as follows;

52 week period

32 week period

ended ended
28 January 2023 29 January 2022
£°000 £°000
Current Tax
Total Overseas tax sultered in the period 1,607 1.861
Adjustiment in relation to prior period - 2
Total current tax for the period 1.607 1.863
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences (2,623) (2.213)
Effect of tax rate change 475 1.710
Adjustments in relation to prior periods 325 -
Total deferred tax tor the period (1,823) (503)
Tax charge recognised in income statement 546 1147
Tax charge (credit) recognised in other comprehensive income (761) 211
Total tax charge/(credit) (2E5) 1.35%




LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 weck period ended 28 January 2023

6. TAXATION (Continued)

The average current tax charge for the period differs (2022: differs) from the stundard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%

(2022: 19%4). The differences are explained below:

52 week period

32 week period

ended ended
28 January 2023 29 January 2022
£'060 L7000
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities belore tax 712 (7.163)
Profiv(loss) on ordinary activities maltiplied by the average rate for the period of 19%5 135 (1.36])
(2022 19%)
liftects of:
Adjustments in respeet of prior periods 325 2
tncome not subject 1o tax and expenses not deductible for tax purposes (157) (83)
Other short term timing differences 17
Group relief (surrendered)’claimed - 3
Other permanent differences - (3)
Overseas tax rate higher than UK tax rate 200 566
Other fixed asset timing differences 59 144
Amounts recognised in OCI (761) 211
Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates 375 1.710
Deferred tax not recognised (391) 154
Total taxation charge/(credit) (215) 1.358

Included in other comprehensive income is a tax credit of £761.000 (2022: £(211.000)). in respect of the defined benefit pension

scheme.

The Chancellor announced in the Budget on 3 March 2021 that the imain rute of UK corporation tax for years starting 1 April 2023

will be 25%. This was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021.

Deferred raxes reflected in these financial statements hay e been measured using enacted tax rates at the balance sheet date. The UK

corporation tax rate of 19% is due to remain {effective 1 April 2020).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 weck period ended 28 January 2023

7. INTANGIBI.F ASSETS

Assets Under

Design Brand Concession  Customer  Computer

Goodwill Archive Portfolio  Agreements Relationships  Sofiware Other Construction Fotal
£7(00 £7000 £°000 £000 £7000 £7000¢ £7000 £000 £7000
Cost
At 3 = =
] 33942 43,594 73,400 1.000 11.500 12,439 22 - 175,897
January 2021
Additions - 733 - - - - - 733
Transters - - - - 1.033 - I 468 2.501
At29 33,942 44,327 73,400 1,000 11,500 13472 12 1,468 179,131
January 2022
Additions - 1.186 - - - - - G331 2117
Transfers - - - - - 2,399 - {2.399) -
Acquisitions
lhn.mgh 349 . } _ _ _ 3 . 252
business
combinations
Disposals - - - - - {1.892) - - (1,892)
At 2.8 3L 45,513 73,400 1,000 11,500 13,979 25 - 179,608
January 2023
Amortisation
and
impairment
At 30
January 2021 - (481) - (895} (7.49) (7,932) - - (16,798)
Asnortisation - 481 - {105 {1.045) 11.349) - - (2.213)
_Impairment (345) - - - - - - - (545)
At 29 (545) . . (1.000) (8.535) (9,481) . R (19.561)
January 2022 o ' o ! -
Amortisation - - - - (1.045) (1,643) - - (2.690)
Impairment - - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - |.842 - - 1.542
At 28 (54%) . . (1.000) (9.580) (9.284) - - (20.469)
January 2023 T ’ - ' T
Net book
value
AL 28
33.646 45,513 73,400 - 1920 +.695 25 - 159,199
January 2023
At 29 33397 4327 73,400 . 2,965 1,991 22 1,468 159.570

January 2022

Management conduocted a thorough review of the asset register. in light of its post COVID-19 strategics. and as a result has disposed
of asseis it no longer believes will be integral 10 its operating plans for the future, Most of these assets had been Tully amorised
however there was a small loss on disposal recognised on the Tncome Statement, £50,000 (2022: £nil),
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week peried ended 28 January 2023

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The carrying value ot goodwill is allocated to cach cash generating unit as follows:

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£'000 £'000

Retail 18,926 22690
Wholesale 14,726 10.707
Toal 33.640 33.397

The brand posttolio and design archive intangible assets are deemed to have an indefinite economic lite due to the durability of the
underlying business which has been demoenstrated over many vears. The customer relationships and concession agrecments
intangible assets were assessed (o have a useful economic life of 11 years and 8 years, respectively.

Concession agreements and customer relationships are reviewed annually for impairment and amortised over their useful cconomic
lives, The amortisation charge is recognised in administration costs in the income statement.

The additions within the design archive relate to capitalised salaries which have an indelinite usetul cconomic life,
Goodwill, the design archive and the brand portfolio are not amortised but tested for impatrment annually. Value in use calculations
underpinning the fair value are contrasted against financial pertormance in the period and forecast cash flows based on the 2023:24
budget and four year plan. both of which have been approved by the Board.
[n the prior period. the goodwill allocated to the Christys brand amounting to £545,000 was impaired to nil due 1o the underlying
performance of the business.
[he key assumptions used in value 1o use caleudations are:
*  Sales: projected sales are built up with reference to trading channels, They incorporate projected growth targets based on;
past performance. historical growth rates and developmenis in key markets.
s EBITDA Margins: projected margins reflect historical performance and the impact of all completed projects to improve
opcrational efficiency and teverage scale. The projecttons do not include the impact ol future restructuring or CAPEX projects
o which the Group is not yet committed.
¢ CGoodwill sensitivity - Sensitivity analysis has been performed by applving the "Scvere but Plausible’ assumptions from the
going concern assessment,
s Discount rate: the discount rate has been caleulated based on the Group™s weighted average cost of capital and risks specitic
to the CGU being tested. A posi-tax rate range of 9.5% to 13.5%0 has been used for the impairment testing (2022 11.2% to

*  Terminal growth rate: Terminal growth of 29% has been applied beyond the S year period (20221 29%).

Further information regarding the use of estumates and judgements has been detailed in Note 1.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Design Archive Fixtures and Computer Plant and  Leasehold Assets Under  Total

and Heritage Fittings  Equipment Machinery improvementsConstyuction
Assets
£1300 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 30 January 2028 6,100 15,281 5,420 12,928 - 4,343 44,072

Additions - 221 26 1.461 - 6.270 7.978

Disposals - (8} - - - - (%)

I ransters - 453 176 - 7346 (10.476) (2,501
Lachange ditferences - 233 2 {408) - - (639)
At 29 January 2022 6,100 15,714 5,624 13,981 7.346 137 48,902

Additions - 436 8¥ 1.49% - 1,233 3.258

Acquisitions through business - 4 - - - - 4
combinations

Disposals - (7.504) (4,492) (1,222) - (16) (13,234)

Transfers - 538 368 - 36 (962) -
Exchange differences - 342 8 881 - - 1,231
At 28 January 2023 6,100 9,540 1,596 15,131 7,402 392 40,161

Deprecistion and impairment
Ac 30 Junuary 2021 (60) (7.545) (3.616) (6.296) - - (17.517)
Depreciation 60 (2.630) (1,045) (1,472) (133) - (5,220)

Disposals - R - - - - 8
txchange differences - 279 {l) (4 . - 274
At 29 January 2022 - (9.888) {4,662) (1.772) (133 - {22, 455)

Depreciation - (2.319) {403 (1.57%) (122 - {(4,421)

Disposals - 7.593 4.190 1,222 - - 13,005
Exchange ditferences - (301 (8) (608) - - (917)
At 28 January 2023 - (1.915) (885) (8.733) (255) - (14,788)

Net book value
At 28 January 2023 6,100 4.625 711 6,398 7,147 392 25,373
At 29 January 2022 6,100 5.826 962 6,209 7,213 137 26,447

Management conducted a thorough review of the asset register. in light ot its post COVIN-19 strategics, and as a result has disposcd
ol assets it no longer believes will be integral to its operating plans for the futere. Most ol these assets had been fully depreciated
however there was a small loss on disposal recognised on the Income Statement. £229.000 (2022: £nil).
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9.  INVESTMENTS

28 January 2023

£'000

lnvestment in subsidiary undertakings as at 29 January 2022 101,860
Additions arriving from share based pavment {ransactions 150
Investment in subsidiary undertakings as at 28 January 2023 102,010
Name of undertaking Principal Classes of issued share capital held by the  Percentage held

Activity Group within

the Group
Liberty Theta Limited Financing Ordinary 100%0
Liberty Kappa Limited Financing Ordinary LGN o
Liberty Alpha Limited Holding company Ordinary 100%
Liberty Gamma Holdings Limited Holding company Qrdinary 100%0
Liberty Limited Financing Ordinary 100%
Liberty Retail Limited Retail Ordinary 100%,
[Liberty Fabric Limited Wholcsale Ordinary 100%
Liberty Investment Limited Holding company Ordinary 100%
Liberty Japan Co. Limited (1) Wholesale Ordinary 100%
[iberty Fabrics Limited (2} Whelesale Ordinary 100%0
Liberty Comercio ¢ Industria de Tecidos Wholesale Ordinary 100%
Ltda (3)

Liberty (Shanghai) Trading Co. Limited (4)  Wholesale Ordinary 100,
Liberty of London Limited Whaolesale Ordinary 100%
C W Headdress Limited (5} Retail Ordinary 100%
Christy & Co. Limited (5) Retall Ordinary 100%
Stamperia Olonia SRL (0) Manutacturing Ordinary 100%%
Frame Due SRL (9) Manufacturing Ordinary 100%
Liberty Fabric Services Ttaly (7) Wholcsale Ordinary 100%%
Liberty Hong Kong Asia Pacific Limited  Holding company Ordinary 10054,
Gl
[iberty Fabric Sales Limited Dormant Ordinary 1002
Liberty Lease Limited Holding company Ordinary 100%
Liberty Tudor Property Limited Dormant Ordinary LO0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

9,  INVESTMENTS (continued)

All entities are incorporated in England and Wales, except where detailed otherwise. and are registered ar 210-220 Regent Street.
London, WIB SALL

(1) Incorporated and operates in Japan. Registered address: 2F Ebisu Park Plasa, 1-9-6 Ebisu Minami. Shibuya-ku. Tokyo. 150-
0022 Japan

(2) Incorporated and operates in the United States of America. Registered address: 584 Broadway, Suite 604, New York, 10012
{3) Incorporated and operates in Bragil. Registered address: 1164 Rua Piaui, Szo Paulo, Brazil

{4} Incorporated and operates in China. Registered address: 42F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road. Wanchai. Hong Kong

(3) Registered address: Unit 7. Witan Park. Avenuc 2, Station Lane, Witney, Oxfordshire, OX2¥ 4FH

(6) Incorporated and operates in ltaly. Registered address: Via A.Colombo 65, Gorla Minore. Varese. Italy

{7} Incorporated and operates in Italy. Registered address: Via A.Colombo 61, Gorla Minore, Varese. Ttaly

(8) Incorporated in Hong Kong. Registered address: 42/F Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Read. Wanchai. Hong Kong

(91 Incorporated and operates in Ttaly, Registered address: Viale dell'lndustria, 6, 20036 Dairago M, ltaly

In January 2023, strike off procedures were completed in respect of all dormant companies witl the exception of
(a) Liberty Fabric Sales Limited, a UK incorporated company which holds an investment in Liberty Fabrics Italy Srl, a company
incorporated in Italy,

{b} Liberty Tudor Property Limited: strike ofT procedures were not yet complete as at the period end date

On 13 December 2022 Stamperia Olonia SRL acquired 1006 of the ordinary share capital of Frame Due SRL. a printing roller and
sereen manufacturer. Consideration paid totalled £441,000, with goodwill of £249.000 being recognised i the year. The fair value
of the assets and liabilities acquired totalled £192.000. The assets and liabilities largely comprised ot working capital including cash
of £210.000. No adjustments were made to the book values of assets and liabilities acquired. The acquisition costs and results of
the acquisition are immaterial 10 the Group. The reported provisional fair values are Minal.
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10. LEASES

Right of Use Asset

The Group's leases consist of real estate, vehicles and computer equipiment.

Real Estate Vehicles Computer software Total
£°000 £7000 £'000 £000
At 30 January 2021 S8.070 127 148 58,345
Additions 477 35 1t 523
Depreciation {4.002) (55} (73) (4,130)
At 29 January 2022 54,545 107 86 54.738
Additions 717 - - 717
Depreciation (3.756) (56) (50) (3.862)
Impairment (926) - {1 (927)
Net book value at 28 Januvary 2023 50,580 51 35 50,666
Lease Liability
Current Non-current Total
£°000 £'000
AL 30 January 2021 2066 60,168 62,234
Additions 231 302 523
Interest 2,802 - 2.802
Lease payments (5,090 - (5.090)
Transfers 2,288 (2.288) -
At 29 January 2022 2,287 58,182 60.469
Additions 415 302 717
Interest 2.747 - 2,747
Lease payments (4,920) - (4,920)
Transfers [.563 (1.563) -
Lease Liabilities at 28 January 2023 2,092 56,921 59.013

The weighted average discount rate of the leases is 4.719% (2022: 4.64%}

Transfers arc the movements of leases from non-current to current liabilities at the end of the period.

The Group has not applied the *short-term lease” and “lease of low-value assets” recognition exemnptions for these leases and has

included them in the above.

11. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSIONS

Pensions overall summary

Liberty Retail Limited operates a defined contribution pension scheme and a defined benefit pension scheme. The defined benefit
scheme has been closed 1o new entrants since February 2001 and was closed to future benetit accrual with effect from 1 January
2007, The assets of all pension schemes of the Company are held in separate trust administered funds.

In addition. Liberty Japan Co Limited operates a defined benefit penston scheme. The Liberty Japan Co Limited pension scheme
commenced on the 1 October 2003 and remains open 1o new entrants.

The defined benefit plan operated by Stamperia Olonia SRL relates to statutory severance benefit which is a legal requirement for
Itslian companies.

Defined contribution schemes

During the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023, the Group paid £1,111,000 ¢2022: £1,024.000} in respeet of contributions to
defined contribution pensien schemes operated on behalf of Group emplovees.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

1t. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSLIONS {(continued)

Defined benefit scheme

A summary of the total present v alue ol eonployee benefits is set vut in the table below:
28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£7000 £7000
Summary
Cumulative net asset of UK scheme 234 3.657
Total defined benefit asset 234 3.657
Cumulative net liabilities of Japancse scheme (330) (340)
Cumulative net habilitics of ftalian statutory severance benetit (328) 317
Total defined benefit liability (658) {657)

UK defined bencfit schemes

The contributions to the defined bencettt scheme during the 532 week period ended 28 January 2023 amounted to £1,015,000 (2022
£nil). The contribution rate is determined by an independent qualified actuary, using the projected unit method, on the basis of
triennial valuations. A full actuarial valuation wus carried out at 30 June 2022 by the Scheme's independent qualified actuary.

The scheme is closed to tuture benefit accrual, there is no expected contribution rate tor future periods, however there are deterred
amounts due. Liberty Retail Linnted expeets to contribute deferred amounts of £325.000 to the defined benefit seheme in the next
linuncial period.

Actuarial valuation

A tull actuarial valuaton of the UK detined benetit scheme was carried out at 30 June 2022 by a qualified independent actuary,
resulting in changes (o the pre and post-retirement discount rate. An IAS19 valuation bas been prepared as at 28 January 2023 by
the acluary based on assumptions set by the Company and is reflected in these financial statements, The assumptions used by the
actuary are those approved by the Trustecs of the Pension Scheme and in the actuary's opinion, are the best estimates chosen from
a range of possible actuarial assumptions. Due to the mescale covered. these assumptions may not necessarily be borne out in
practice. The major assumptions used by the actuary are shown in the following rable:

52 week period  cended 52 week period  ended

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

[Discount rate of scheme fiabilitics at period end 4.5% 2.3%

Inflation per annum (RPI) 3.1% 3.4%

[nflation per annum (CPD) 2.5% 2.8%,
Rale ol increase per annuim in pensions in payment

accrucd before 3 April 1997 3.0% 300
Rate of increase per annum in pensions in payment

accrued after 5 April 1997 3.0% 3.3%

Percentage of maximum cash allowed taken by members 75% 75%

Mortality base table adopted S3PMAwith a scaling factor of 3PMAwith a scaling factor of 96™)

96% for males for males

S3PFA_N with a scaling factor S3PFA_ M with a scaling factor of

of 101% for females LO1% for females

Moaortality future improvements adopied Futurc improvements in line

with the "CMI_2021"projection Future improvements in line with

model with parameter 8§ Kappa = the "CM1_2020" projeclion model

7.0, A=0.50, W2020 = 0, W2021 with parameter S Kappu=7.0. A =

= Gand long term improvement  0.25, W2020 = 0 and long term

rate of 1.25% p.a.  improvement rate of 1.25% p.a.

Forecast life expectancy for male currently aged 60 88 87

Forecast life expectancy for tfemale currently aped 60 89 S0

Forecast life cxpectancy at 60 for male currently aged 46 89 88

Forecast lite expectancy at 60 for female currently aged 40 1 91



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

11. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSIONS (continued)

Actuarial valuation {continued)
The forecast life expectancey assumption is based on a male, aged 60,

The transier take-up assumption is thit po allowance has been made for members to transter out of the scheme.

The overal] expected return on assets is caleulated as the weighted average of ¢xpected returns on each individuat asset elass. The
expected return on equities 15 the sum ot intlation. the dividend yield. economic growth and investment expenses. The rerurn on
oilts and honds is the current macket yield on long term gilts and bonds. The expected return on other assets is set equal to

cxpected inflation,
Movement of deficit in the UK defined benefit pension scheme of Liberty Retail Limited

52 week period

52 week period

ended ended
28 January 2023 29 Januvary 2022

£'000 £°000
Amounts to be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
Present vaiue of funded obligation (20,962) (27.260)
Fair value of scheme asscts 21,196 20917
Net Asset in Statement of Financial Position 234 3.657
Expensc/(Income) recognised in Income Statement
Net interest on the net defined benefit asset (90) {40
Adminmstration expensces 522 372
Expense recognised in Income Statement 432 332
Movement in fair value of Scheme assets
At start of period 30917 33.330
Administration costs incurred (522) (372)
Contributions paid by the Group 1,015 -
Henefils paid by the Scheme (1,195) (1,166)
Expected return on Scheme assets in finance income 749 488
Actoarial losses on Scheme assets recognised in equity (9,728) (1.363)
Fair valuc of Scheme assets at period cnd 21,196 30917
Equities 5,023 3.103
Bond funds 5.903 19.311
Matching assets 9.824 7.925
Other investments 446 578
Fair value of scheme asscts 21,196 30917
Movement in present value of defined bencfit obligations
At start of period 27,260 30.453
Benctits paid by the scheme (1.195) {1.166)
Interest cost in finance expense 619 448
Actuarial gains recognised in cquity (5,722) (2.175)
Present value of defined benefit obligations at period end 20,962 27.260
Cumulative asset at start of period 3.657 2877
Actuarial gains'{losses) recognised direcetly in equity during period (4.006) 1112
Contributions paid by the Company 1,015 -
LExpense recognised in income statement (432) (332
Cumulative asset at period end 234 3.057
Actual return on Scheme assets (9,019 (873)

Included within Other Comprehensive Income is a deterred tax credit of the defined benefit pension asset amounting to £761,000

(2022: £(211,000}).

=]
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

1. POST EMPLOYMEN] BENEFITS AND PENSION (continued)

The fair values of the scheme's assets are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant change
before they are realised. The present value of the scheme's Habilitics is derived from cash flow projections over long periods of
time and is thus tnherently uncertain. However, the table above represents the Trustee's and the Actuary's best estumate of the
surplus in the scheme at the dates referred to.

Analvsis of amount recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

52 week period 52 week period

ended ended

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£000 £'000

Actual return less expected return on pension seheme assets in UK 9.728 1.363
Actuarial gains due to changes in financtal assumptions (6.869) (2,450
Actuarisl {gains) losses due to changes in demographic assumptions 406 (40
Actuarial losses due o liability experience 741 15
4,006 (L.112)

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets in Japan (72) {(57)
Actuarial gain/{loss) in consolidated statement of comprehensive income 3,934 (1.169)

A summary of the current period is as follows:

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

UK scheme £'000 £7000
Fair value of scheme assets 21.196 30917
Present value of defined benefit obligations (20,962) (27,2060)
Asset 234 3.657
Net Assct in Statement of Financial Position 234 3.057
Experience gatns arsing on Scheme assets 9,728 1,363
Expericnce losses arising on Scheme highilities 741 15

Risks associated with the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Assct volatility

Changes in bond viclds

Inflation risk

Life expectancy

The liabilitics are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields: if
assets under perform this yield, this will create a deficit. The Scheme is invested primarily in growth
assets. corporate bonds and liability matched assets. The growth assets, though expected to
auperform corporate bonds in the long-tcom. cecate volatitity and risk in the short-term, The
allocation to growth assets is monitored by the Trustees to ensure it remains appropriate given the
Schemc's long term objectives.

A decrease in corporate band yields will inerease the value placed on the Scheme's liabilities for
IAS 19, although this will be partially oftser by an increase in the value of the Scheme's bond
holdings,

A proportion of the Scheme's benetit obligations are linked to inflation: higher inflation will lead to
higher liabilitics (although, in most cases. caps on the level of inflationary inereases are in place 1o
protect against extreme inflation). The majority of the asscts are ¢ither unaftected by or only loosely
correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit.

The majority of the Scheme's obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so
increases in dife expectaney will result in an increase in the Habilitics.

The Company and Trustees have agreed a long-lerm strategy for reducing investment risk as and when appropriate. This includes
an asset-liability matching policy which aims 1o reduce the volatiliny of the funding Tevel of the Scheme by Investing in assets such
as swaps which perform in line with the liabilities of the Schemie so as to protect against inflation being higher than expected.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

1. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSIONS (continucd}

Sensitivity to key assumptions

The key assumptions used for TAS F9 are: discount rate, inflation and mortality. The sensitivity ol the results to these assumptions
is as follows:-

28 January 2023

Scheme asscts DBOQ Surplus/{ Deticit)
£'000 £'000 £'000
Current figures 21196 (20.962) 234
Following a 0.23% p.u. deerease in the discount rate 21,196 (21,5344 (348)
Following a 0.25%% p.u. increase in the RPI inflation assumption 21,196 (21.134) 62
Following an increase in the life expectuncy of one year 21,196 (21.757) (561)
29 January 2022
Scheme assets DBO Surplus
£'000) £'000 £'000
Current figures 30,917 (27.260) 3.657
Following a 0.25% p.a. decrease in the discount rate 30917 (28,270) 2.647
Following a (.25% p.a. increase tn the RP{ nflation assumption 30917 (27,708} 3.209
Following an merease in the life expectancy of one year 30,917 (28610 2.307

The sensitivity information shown above is approximate and bas been determined taking into account the duration of the liabitites
and the overall profile of the Scheme membership. This is the same appreach as has been adopted in previous periods.

Maturity Profile of the Scheme
The defined benetit obligatton includes benefits for deferred pensioners and current pensioners, Some of the deferred pensioners
are still current employees., but this does not direetly impact their benefits from the Schemg as there is no longer a link between their
salary and their Scheme benefits,
The defined benefit obligation is broadly split 34%/66% between deferred pensioners and current pensioners. The Scheme duration
is an indicator of the weighted-average time until benetit payments are made. For the Scheme as a whole. the duration 1s around 13

years.

12. INVENTORIES

28 January 29 January

2023 2022
£'000 £7000
Raw materials 10,948 9.084
Work in progress 1,112 1.175
Finished goods 31,892 24.993

43,952 35,252

£100.891,000 (2022- £82.475.000) of inventory was recognised within cost of sales in the period.
£391,000 (2022; £663.000} of nventory provisions were expensed to the consolidated income statement during the period. inline
with sales of discontinued and discounted stock and movement in the provision.

The net realisable vatue of inventory 1s reviewed on a business unit basis, Retail inventory is assessed by scason. The wholesale
division provisioning is based an the achieved margin for each product line. Imperfect and obsolete inventory is fully provided for.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
28 January 2023 29 January 2022 28 January 2023 29 January 2022
£000 £7000 £'000 £°000
Trade receivables 13,365 12,318 - -
{her receivabies 6,941 1,702 4 2
Prepayments 2,324 601 - -
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 7.379 7.526
22,630 14,621 7,383 7.52%

The Group's exposure to credit risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note |18,

A recetvable represents the right to consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is required before time is required
betore payment is duc.

14. TAX RECOVERABLE/(PAYABLE)

28 January 2023 29 lanuary 2022

£'000 £7000

Japanese corporation lax payable (143) (186)
ltalian corporation tax payable (59) (178)
Ttulian corporation tax recoverable 936 -
734 (364)




LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

I5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The deferred tax assets and liabilities arose as follows:

Short term Intangible Recognised Accelerated Total
timing Assets Losses capital  Liability

ditferences allowance
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Broughi forward at 31 January 2021 2.010 (22.647) 7.331 4,841 (H.465)
MMovement in the period 1.240 138 308 720 2,406
Rate change 1,027 {7.034) 2,350 [,756 {1,901)
Brought forward at 30 January 2022 4,277 {29.543) 9,989 7,317 {7.960)
Movement in period 2.863 (126) (726) 28N 2,299
Rate chunge - (339) (%) 71 (476)
Closing assct (Hability) as at 28 January 2023 7,140 (30,208) 9,255 7.676 (6,137)
28 January 29 January
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Deferred tax asset 24,071 21,583
Deferred tax liabitity (30,208) (29,543}
Net deterred tax asset/(liability) (6,137) (7.960)

28 Janaary 29 January

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets not provided £000 £7000
Trading tax losscs 3,107 3208
Deferred tax assets not recognised at period end 3,107 3.208

Deferred tax assets not provided

The Group has gross tax assets totalling £12.4m (2022: £13.1m) on which deferred tax assets have not been recognised. The potential
deferred tax assct of £3.1m (2022: £3.2m). the majority of which relates to losses. has not been recognised on the consolidated
Swtement of Financial Position as at 28 January 2023 due fo uncertainty as to timing and use of these net tax assets, particularly the
trading losses which are restricted in their use, these net tax assets have not been recognised as an asset in the consolidated Statement
of Financial Position at 28 January 2023 but continue to be available as required.

No deferred tax lability is provided in respect of future remittance of carnings of {orcign subsidiaries where the Group is able to
control the remittance of carnings and it is probable that such camings will not be remitted in the foresceable future or where no

Hability would arise on remittance.

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

28 January 2023 29 January 2022 28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£'000 £1000 £'000 £1000
Trade payables 18,297 18,362 -
Other payables 7,163 0358 3 2
Other tax and soctal security 6,151 K13 - -
Accruals and deferred income 15,129 15,890 -
46,740 41,423 3 2

The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed i note |8,

'
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

17, LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The Group's [oans at the reporting date were as fotlows:

28 January 2023

24 January 2022

£000 £7000
Non-current lisbilities
Secured bank loans 83,617 92,301
83,617 92.301
Currcnt liabilitics
Current portion of secured bank loans 17,346 K.196
Finance leases - 527
17,346 8.723
Total loans and borrowings 100,963 101024

Bunk loans are disclosed net of defemred financing tees which are amortised over the term of the debt.

The Group's loans bore variable raies of interest as at the reporting date as follows:

Currency Nominal interest rate Year of  Face value and carrving amount

maturity
28 January 2023 29 January 2022
£°000 £'000
Term Loan At GBP SONIA plus 8% 2025 47.505 46.456
Term Loan A2 Py TONAR plus 8% 2025 6,210 0.394
Term Loan A3 GRP SONIA plus 8% 2025 5,072 1.G960
Capital Expenditure Facility GBP SONIA plus 8%y 2023 10,573 10339
Revolving Credit Facility GBP SONIA plus 3% 2024 28,000 28.000
Term Loan Gruppo UBI EUR EURIBOR plus 1.5% 2024 2,863 4278
Intesa EUR EURIBOR plus 1.4% 2027 373 -
Banco BI'M EUR EURIBOR plus 1.4%, 2026 301 -
Banco BPM EUR EURIBOR plus 1.5% 2027 346 -
COVID-19 Loan EUR Fixed 1.13% 2026 17 21
Landlord Loan GBP N7A 2024 1,531 2,188
Finance leases EUR Vartous 2023 - 527
Tutal loans and borrewings 102,791 103,103
Deterred financing tees GBP N:A 2024 (1,828) (2.139)
100,963 101.024

Post Balance Sheet Event

Post year end in April and May. Stamperia Olonia Srl raised three short werm foans. tor an accumulated amount of €1.500.000,
which were raised to support capital expenditure. All three tranches of debt totaling €3500,000 cach have a term of six months
betore repayment falls due. These new loans are not secured against any Group asscts.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial assets ad liabilities, together with their Fair values at 28 January 2023, were as follows:

Group Company
28 January 2023 29 January 2022 28 Fanuary 2023 29 January 2022
Carrying Fair Carrving Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount value  amount amount amount

£000 £°000 £7000 £70060 £°000 £7000 £7000 £7000

Trade and other receivables 20,306 20,306 14,020 14,020 7.383 7.383 7.528 7528
Cash and cash cquivalents 14,410 14,410 22240 22,240 - - - -
Bank loans and borrowings (102,791) (102,791 (103,163} (103.163) - - - -
{.casc liabilities (59.014)  (59,014) (604069 (60,469} - . - “
Lrade and other payables (26,881) (26,881} (24.720) (24.720) (3 3) (2) (2)

(153.970) (153,970) (132.092) (152.092) 7.380 7,380 7.526 7.526

The following are the contractual maturities of financial labilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the effect
of netling agreemems:
Carrying Contractual 1 vearor 1to<2years 2 to <Svears

amount cash flows less
£000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £000
Bank loans 102,791 102,791 1%8,199 84,007 585
Inderest payable 1.821 18.383 9,449 8.874 10
Total 104,612 121,174 27,698 92,881 595

Capital management policy
The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

« o safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in ordet to provide returns for sharcholders gnd benetits to
other stakcholders: and
« o ensure sufficient liguid resources are available to meet the fuading requirement of its working capital cyeles and 1o fund
new projects where identified.

This 1s achieved through ensuring sufficient bank and other facilities are in place, alongside the continual monitoring of cashilow
forecasts and other financial key performance indicators. The below ratios are reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure covenarnt
compliance:

. Net feverage
. Minimum liquidity
. Minimum EBITDA

OfT the buck ol the COVID-19 pandemic. lenders waived the reguirement o test net leverage untit 30 April 2023,

The Group was covenant compliant throwghout the period. The gearing ratios as at 2% January 2023 and 29 January 2022 are as
tollows:
28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£'000 £7000
Total loans and borrowings (note 17) 100,963 101.024
Cash and cash cquivalents (14,410) (22,2400
Net debt 86,553 78.784
Total share capital and premium 107.561 107.561
Total capital (1ota] asscts less current Habilities) 273.81i 285311
Gearing ratio 32% 28%

L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 wecek period ended 28 January 2023

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk
The mterest payable above mceludes contractual interest payable on secured and unsecured bank foans. The Acquisition Financing

rates of interest vary in line with SONIA and TONAR, and in line with the consolidated Group ratio of debt to EBITDA.

The financial liability contractual maturity table includes interest payuble at these Hxed rates applied as at 28 January 2023 assuming
no reduction in the interest rate from an improved debt to EBITDA covenant ratio.

Financial risks

The Group has exposure to the fotlowing principal financial risks in the operation and management of 115 business:

(i) Liguidity risk:

(i) Market risk;

(i) Credit risk; and

(iv) lavestment impairment risk.

Set out below is information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks and the Group's objectives. policies and processes
for measuring and managing risk:

Liquidity risk

The Group's treasury policies are designed 10 ensure that sufficient committed loan facilitics are available o support current and
future business requirements. Cash and loan management is a core feature of the Board's bustness model and rolling cash flow
Torecasts, updated on a weckiy basis, are controlled by the Dircctors and senior exccutives to manage these reguirements,

Liquidity risk - maturity analysis 28 January 2023 29 January 2022
Less than Over 1 year l.¢ss than Over 1 year
1 vear ! year
Financial liabilitics £°000 £000 £000 £'000
Trade and other pavables 20,881 - 24.720 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 weck period ended 28 January 2023

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of finanecial loss w the Group i customer or counter party 1o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The risk to the Group arises principatly from the Group's receivables from customers and from deposits with financial
institutions.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach customer. The demographics of
the Group’s customer hase, including the general detault risk in the principal scctors in which the Group operates. has less of an
influence on credit risk. The Group maintains credit insurance which protects against bad debis that may arise, with an excess of
the higher of £2.000 or 10°¢ payable per claim.

The Group deposits money with financial institutions and monitors the health and financial condition of those institutions,

The Group regularly reviews intercompany balances and tests for impairment on an annual basis. Provisions for intercompany
balances are made where impairment indicators are present.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum eredit exposure. The maximum exposure to eredit risk at the
reporting date was:

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£7000 £°000
Trade receivables 13,365 [2.3]8
The ageing of trade receivables at 28 January 2023 was:
Days past due
Current <30 days 30-60 days 61-90 dayvs >91 days Total
£'000 £7000 £°000 £0060 £°000 £°000
Estimated total gross 12,176 705 339 169 273 13.662
carrying amouant at delaul
Lstimated credit loss (3) (89) (122) (17) (66) (297)
Capected credit loss rate 0% 13% 36% [0% 24% 2%
The ageing of trade receivables at 29 January 2022 was:
Trade receivables
Days past due
Current <30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days >41 days Total
£°000 £°000 £7000 £000 £000 £°000
Estimated total gross 11,383 442 115 140 727 12,807
carrying amount at default
Estimated credit loss 0 (35) (35) (11 (408) {489)
Expected credit loss rale 0% B 30% 8% 36% 4%

The impatrment provision at 28 January 2023 of £297.000 (2022: £489.000) relates to debts mainly from overseas customers that
are not covered by insurance.

The Divectors belicves that no material amount of impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade reecivables not past due or
past duc by up to 120 days. The mujority of the balance relates to customers that have good financial track records with the Group.

N
0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 Januwary 2023

I5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continucd)

The movement in the atlowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the period was as follows:

28 January 2023 29 lanuary 2022

£000 £7000
Balance brought forward (489) (655)
Decrease in expected credit loss 192 166
Ralance at end of period (297) (489}

The allowanee account lor trade receivables is used o record impairment losses unless the Group is satisticd that ne recovery of
the amount owing is possible: at that point the amounts considered irrecoverable are written offagainst the trade receivables directly.

Investment impairment risk

The Directors understand the risks associated with the investments held by the entity and the fact that these risks relate to the
potential impairment of those investments, To identity any risk ot impatrment in a timely manner. the Group veviews the financial
performance of its investments on a regular basis. The Directors are satisticd with the performance of the investments and foresee

no change in this for the foresecable Tuture.

19. PROVISIONS

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£000 £°000
Beauty drop onerous provision - current 1,421 -
Dissentient sharcholders - non-current 191 188
Balance at end of period 1,612 18K

The current provision relates to the unavoidable costs ot delivering the goods and services under the beauty drop schetne.

The non-current provision relates o amounts duc {o the holders of preference shares who were bought out in 219 and yet to claim
the proceeds of sale.

20, SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Ar 28 January 2023, the Group had a share-based payment arrangement in relation to the D, D2 and D3 ordinary shares in the
Company. issued to cerrain employees of the Group, which are linked to the individuals contimued employment in the Group. The
full terms af the D1, N2 and D3 ordinary sharcs are set out in the Articles of Association of the Company.

Summery of the arrangements as at 28 Januwry 2023 and 29 Janwary 2022

The D1 and D2 shares vest on an exit (being a sale or listing of the Group) and participate on an exit on proceeds above £250
million. Where an exit has not taken place by December 2023, the employees have an option to require the Company to acquire the
¢hares at that time. based on the value of the Group at that fime. Where this option 15 taken, half of the payment is made up front
and the other half of the payment is made one year later, The second payment is adjusted where EBITDA in the subsequent fimancial
year falls by more than 10%,

The D1 and D2 shares have been classitied as a compound share-based payment arrangement, with both an equity and cash-settled
component, given the employee has a choice of settlement, contingent on a future event.

60
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

20. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The cash-settled share-based payment charge has been recognised across the vesting period, being five years tor the first tranche,
and six years for the second tranche.

The D3 shares are classified as an equity-settied share-based paymoent arrangement, which vest onan exit {being a sate or Hsting of
the Group). The D3 shurcholders purticipate on an exit on proceeds above £250 million. The share-hascd payment charge has been

recognised across the vesting period. being from grant date 1o the estimated date of an exit.

The D1, D2 and D3 shares were subject to a beneticial moditication on 13 January 2022, where the amount of the participation on
an exit was adjusted.

Reconciliation of ourstanding share-hased pavment airangemenis
| o . &

The number of shares subject to share-based payment arrangements arc as follows:

D1 ordinary shares D2 ordinary shares D3 ordinary

shares

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 4.000 2,000 2.600
Granted during the year - - -
Forfeited during the year (623)

Outstanding at the end of the year 4,000 2.000 1,975
Meustrement of share-based pavment arrangements

The fair value of services received in return tor the shares granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the shares granted,
ustng a Monte Carlo model,

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date, 31 January 2021, 13 January 2022 (at the date of’
modification). 31 January 2022 and 31 January 2023 are as follows:

31 January 31 January 13 3t 31

20202 20212 January  Janwary  January

2022 ¢ 2022° 2023

Fuir value — DI and D2 £639.43 £78.92 £oR.47 £83.72 £88.08
Fair value — D3 £604.81 N/A £62.11 £83.72 N/A
Equity value £232 million £78 million . }778 . #78 It 1.27
mitlion million million

Lxercise price £5.42 £5.42 £3.42 £5.42 £5.42
Expected volattlity (wetghted average) 37.20% 57.27% 63.75% 63.75% 54.76%
Option lilt (weighted average) 4 years 3 years 2 years 2ycars 1.5 years
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on  government 0.41%% (0.08%) 0.70% 0.70% 350,

bonds)
{ = for e purposes of the grant date fair value of the DI and D2 chares
2 = for the purposes of the veporting date fair value of the D1 and D2 shares: and grant daie faiv value of the D3 shares
3 = for the purposes of the reparting date fair value of the DT aind D2 shares
4 = for the purposes of immediatelv pre-modification of the D1 D2 and D3 shares

S for the purpases of immediately post-maodification of the D1 D2 and D3 shares, the veporting date fair valiwe of the D1 and D2 shares; and
the grant date faiv value of the additional 133 shares issuce

6 - for the purposes of the reporting dute fair value of the D1 and D2 shaies
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

20. SHARE BASED PAVMUNTS (continued)

The expected volatility has been based an a bencluimarking exercise for the equity volatility of similar listed entities. Service
conditions and non-market performance conditions have not been taken into account in the fair value measurement of the services
received. The incremental fair value as a result of the modification in January 2022 is £15.25 per share for the DU and D2 shares,
and £21.61 for the D3 shares,

The totad expenses recognised for the year and the total liabilities recognised at the end ol the yeararising [rom share-based payments
are as foliows:

Group Company
28 January 2023 29 January 2022 28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000
Equuty settied share-bascd payment expense (152) (212) - -
Cash settled share-based payment expense 17 93 (195) {188)
{eredit) recognised in the income statement
Cash settled share-based payment expense ! - - 150 167
(credit) recognised as anincrease in s esunent
in subsidiary undertakings
Total carrying amount of habilities 386 279 386 279

21. SHARE CAPITAL

28 January 2023 29 January 2022
Allotted, called up and fully paid £'000 £'000
Share capital {95.606.365 {2022 93,206,305 shaves in issuc)
A Ordinary shares of £0.01 (93,197,565 (2022: 93,197,565 shares in issue) 932 932
D1 Ordinary shares of £0.01 (4,000 (2022 4,000 shares in tssuc) - -
D2 Ordinary shares of £8.01 (2,200 (2022: 2 200 shares in issue) - -
D3 Ordinary shares of £0.01 {2,600 (2022: 2 600 shares in issue) - -
Preference shares of C0.01 (2,400,000 (2022: nil shares in issue) 24 24
Total parent company share capital 956 956

On 21 Apnl 2021, the authorised, called up and tully paid share capital was increased by £24.000 by the issue of 2.400,000
preference shares of £2.50 each. The nominal value of the shares was £0.01 and the share premium arising was £5.976.000. These
shares were fully paid in cash,

The sharcholders have on commitment a {urther £4.000,000 to cure any f(uture liquidity concerns the Giroup may have in meeting
its covenant requirements. This commitment is in place until January 2025 and i drawn will result in a further issue of preference
shares,

The Company s issued share capital at 28 January 2023 comprises A ordinary shares plus 1. D2 and D3 Management Incentive
Shares and preference shares. The A ordinary shares and the preference shares carry the right to vote. The D1, D2 and D3 shares do
not have any voting rights,

Dividends on ordinary shares

No ordinary dividends were declared daring the period. Holders of A ordinary and preterence shares are entitted o recenve dividends
per share as declared periodically and are entitled to one vote per share at Sharcholder mectings of the Company.

Share premium

28 January 2023 29 January 2022

£'000 £'000
Premium on allotment of A Qrdinary shuares 100,581 100.581
Premium on allotment of D1 Ordinary shares 22 22
Premium on alletment of D2 Ordinary shares 12 12
Premium on allotment of D3 Ordinary shares 14 14
Premium on allotment of Preference shares 5,976 5.976
Total parent company share premium 106,605 16,605
Total parent company share capital and share premium 107,561 107.561
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 28 January 2023

22, COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

Guarantees

select entities of the Group torm the Obligor group which guarantee the Group's Sentor Facilitics.

Liberty Zeta Limited has guaranteed Stanperia Qlonia SRL's obligations under its Term Loan Facility.

Some of the Company's subsidiaries have taken advantage of the exemption available under Scetion 479A of the Companics Act
2006 in respect of the requirement forsdit A a condition of the exemption, the Company has guaranteed the year-end liabilities
of the relevant subsidiaries until they are settled in full. The net liabilitics of the subsidiaries at the vear-end were £6,319_ 000 (2022:
£3.254.0001.

Audit Exemption under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

The Directors consider that subsidiarics of the Group are entitled to exemption from the requirement to hasve an audit under the
provision of section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 {*the Act”’) and members have not required the company to obtaig an audit

for the period in question i accordance with section 476 of the Act.

Liberty Zeta Limited has guaranteed the labilities of the following subsidiaries in order that they qualify for the exemption from
audit under Scction 479A of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the period ended 28 January 2023:

Liberty Gamma Heldings Limited

e Liberty Alpha Limited

¢ Liberty Limted

+ Liberty of Londen Limited

+  Liberty Theta Limited

e Liberty Kappa Limited
Liberty Investment Limited

e Christys and Co. Limited

¢ (W Hcaddress Limited

& Liberty Lease Limited

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Compunies Act 2006 with respect 1o
aecounting records and the preparation of financial statements,

23. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Liberty Zeta Limited is the ultimate parent company ol the Group. In the opinion of the Directors there is no ultimate controlling
party.

The land and buildings utilised by Stamperia Qlonia SRL are owned by one of the Directors of Stamperia (Honia SRL. Stamperia
Olonia SRL pays rent Tor occupying and utilising the land and buildings. Rent of £663,000 (20622: £604,000) was paid during the
period, In addition, Stamperia Olonia SRL pays to market its business to a company owned by ane of the Dircctors of Stamperia
Olonia SRL. Marketing of £98.000 (2022: £102 000) was paid during the period.

in addition to the above, Liberty Retail Limited purchased goods totalling £248.000 (2022; £82,000). from Descomed Limited,
which is an entity included within the BlueGem fund portfolio.

During the yvear, the Dircetors and connected parties of Liberty Zeta Limited have purchased goods amounting to £170.000 ¢2022:
£115.000) from Liberty Retail Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary. No amounts were outstanding at the end of the vear (2022:

tmil).

The resulls of the company are not consohidated into the results of any other company.
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24, ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

In the opinion of the Directors there s no ultinate parent undertaking and controlling party.
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